ANNEXURE B

Amendment Deed

327-335 Burley Road, Horsley Park 2175

Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979

Minister for Planning (ABN 38 755 709 681) CSR Building Products Limited (ACN 008 631 356)

Page 3 of 102 pages

S:4822065_3 BNF

Table of contents

9

1.	Definitions and interpretation	3
2.	Amendments	3
3.	Effective Date	5
4.	Remaining Provisions Unaffected	6
5.	Registration on title	6
6.	Evidence of registration	6
7.	Expenses and Stamp Duty	7
8.	Governing Law and Jurisdiction	7
9.	Counterparts	7

ų,

Page 4 of 102 pages

This deed is dated

Parties:

Minister

Minister for Planning (ABN 38 755 709 681) of Level 15, 52 Martin Place, Sydney, New South Wales 2000

Developer

CSR Building Products Limited (ACN 008 631 356) of Trinity 3, 39 Delhi Road, North Ryde, NSW 2113

Introduction:

- A The Minister and the Developer are parties to a Principal Planning Agreement in relation to the Development dated 20th November 2015 (the **Principal Planning Agreement**) under which the Developer agreed to make Development Contributions on the terms set out in the Principal Planning Agreement.
- **B** The parties wish to amend the Principal Planning Agreement in the manner set out in this deed. This deed will apply to the Development on the Land (including development pursuant to Development Application DA893.1/2013).

It is agreed:

1. Definitions and interpretation

- (a) Words which are defined in the Principal Planning Agreement and which are used in this Deed have the same meaning in this Deed as in the Principal Planning Agreement, unless the context requires otherwise.
- (b) The provisions of clause 1.2 of the Principal Planning Agreement forms part of this Deed as if set out at length in this Deed.

2. Amendments

The Principal Planning Agreement is amended as follows:

(a) **Clause 1.1 Definitions** is amended to include the following additional definitions:

Actual Cost means:

- i. the final certified contract cost of the Road Works inclusive of variations following compliance with all of the Developer's obligations under the WAD; and
- ii. other costs (not exceeding in total an amount that is 15% of the amount in paragraph
 (i) above) reasonably incurred in the carrying out of the Road Works and paid by the Developer to third parties for the following:
 - i. design of the Road Works, project management, fees, investigations, consultant fees, studies or reports specifically required for the Road Works;

Page 5 of 102 pages

- ii. any licence, approval, authority, permit or permission specifically required to be obtained for or in relation to the carrying out of the Road Works; and
- iii. other matters only where the approval of the Minister to the inclusion of such costs has been given in writing to the Developer.

Construction Certificate has the same meaning as in the Act.

Contamination has the same meaning given to it in the Contaminated Land Management Act 1997 (NSW) and includes asbestos and lead.

Costs means any loss, cost, fee, charge, expense, Tax, rate, fine, penalty or debts including those in connection with advisors and any compensation payable to any person in accordance with the law.

Dealing in relation to the Land means, without limitation, selling, transferring, assigning, mortgaging, charging, disposing, encumbering or otherwise dealing with the Land.

Estimated Cost Cap means the sum of One Million Four Hundred Thousand dollars [\$1,400,000].

Excess Stage 1 Contributions Credit has the meaning given to it in clause 2.4(b) of Schedule 4.

Final Reconciliation has the meaning given to that expression in clause 2.4(a) of Schedule 4.

Handover means to handover ownership and control of a part or the whole of the Road Works in accordance with the WAD.

Practical Completion means the Practical Completion of the Road Works in accordance with the WAD.

Remediation has the meaning given to it in *State Environmental Planning Policy No.* 55 – *Remediation of Land* and **remediate** has a corresponding meaning.

Roads Authority has the meaning given to it in the Roads Act 1993 and includes RMS and Fairfield City Council.

Road Works means the improvement works to Old Wallgrove Road, generally in accordance with the Calibre Consulting plans titled "CSR Horsley Park – Old Wallgrove Road Widening – Road & Drainage Design for Road Act Approval" project number 15-001115.15.16 for drawing number 001 revision 03, drawing number 002 revision 03, drawing number 003 revision 03, drawing number 101 revision 03, drawing number 102 revision 03, drawing number 201 revision 03, drawing number 301 revision 03, drawing number311 revision 03, drawing number 501 revision 03, drawing number 502 revision 03, drawing number 401 revision 03, drawing number 601 revision 03, drawing number 602 revision 03, drawing number 710 revision 03, drawing number 801 revision 03, drawing number 811 revision 03, drawing number 821 revision 03, drawing number 901 revision 03, drawing number 901 revision 03, drawing number 901 revision 03, drawing number 910 revision 03, drawing number 911 revision 03, drawing number 910 revision 03, drawing number 911 revision 03, drawing number 911 revision 03, drawing number 911 revision 03, drawing number 910 revision 03, drawing number 911 revision 03, drawing number 911 revision 03, drawing number 910 revision 03, drawing number 911 revision 03, drawing number 911 revision 03, drawing number 911 revision 03, drawing number 910 revision 03, drawing number 911 revision 03, drawing number 910 revision 03, drawing number 911 revision 03, drawing number 911 revision 03 at Annexure C.

Road Works Offset has the meaning given to the expression in clause 2.3 of Schedule 4 of this Deed.

Page 6 of 102 Pages

RMS means the Roads and Maritime Services ABN 76 236 371 088, a NSW Government agency and corporation constituted under section 46 of the Transport Administration act 1988 (NSW).

Standard Instrument means the *Standard Instrument (Local Environmental Plans) Order* 2006 as at the date of this Deed.

Stage 1 Contribution Amount has the meaning given to it in clause 1(b) of Schedule 4.

WAD means a Works Authorisation Deed (or such equivalent deed or agreement) entered into by the Roads Authority and the Developer:

- i. regarding the design and construction of the Road Works and their Handover to the Roads Authority by the Developer; and
- ii. consistent with the terms of this deed.
- (b) A new clause 4.4 is inserted as follows:

4.4 Road Works Contribution

The Developer must provide:

- (a) the Road Works to the Minister in accordance with clause 2 of Schedule 4 to this deed
- (b) If the value of the Road Works calculated in accordance with clause 2.3 of Schedule 4 to this deed (:
 - i. exceed the Stage 1 Contribution Amount following a Final Reconciliation by the Minister in accordance with clause 2.4 of Schedule 4 to this deed, the Developer will be entitled to an Excess Stage 1 Contributions Credit in accordance with clause 2.4(b) of Schedule 4 to this deed; or
 - is less than the Contribution Amount for Stages 1 or 2 of the Development (being whichever stage the Developer has elected to apply the Road Works Offset) following a Final Reconciliation by the Minister in accordance with clause 2.4 of Schedule 4 to this deed, the Developer must pay the outstanding balance of the Stage 1 or Stage 2 Contribution Amount (as relevant) to the Minister as a cash contribution in accordance with clause 2.4(d) of Schedule 4 of this deed.
- (c) **Schedule 4** is replaced with the Schedule contained in Schedule 1 to this Deed.
- (d) Schedule 5 is replaced with the Schedule contained in Schedule 2 to this Deed.
- (e) A new Annexure C is inserted as per the plans contained in Schedule 3 to this Deed.

3. Effective Date

This Deed takes effect, and the parties agree to be bound by the Principal Planning Agreement as amended by this Deed, from the date of this Deed (the **Effective Date**).

Page 7 of 102 Pages

4. Remaining Provisions Unaffected

- (a) Except as specifically amended by this deed, all terms and conditions of the Principal Planning Agreement remain in full force and effect. With effect from the Effective Date (as defined in clause 3), the Principal Planning Agreement as amended by this Deed is to be read as a single integrated document incorporating the amendments effected by this deed.
- (b) The Parties agree that for the purpose of ease of understanding and administration, the conformed copy of the Principal Planning Agreement at Annexure A of this deed comprises the Principal Planning Agreement as varied by this deed.

5. Registration on title

- (a) Within 10 Business Days of receiving a copy of this deed executed by the Minister, the Developer at its own expense is to take all practical steps and otherwise do anything reasonably necessary to procure:
 - i. the consent of each person, as required by the Registrar-General, who:
 - i. has an estate or interest in the Land registered under the Real Property Act; or
 - ii. is seized or possessed of an estate or interest in the Land,

to the registration of this deed on title and to the terms of this deed; and

- iii. the execution of any documents; and
- iv. the production of the relevant certificates of title;
- v. the lodgement of this deed in a registrable form at the Land and Property Information for registration by the Registrar-General in the relevant folio of the Register for the Land, or in the General Register of Deeds if this deed relates to land not under the Real Property Act.
- (b) The Developer will take all practical steps and otherwise do anything reasonably necessary to procure the registration of this deed within three months of the date of this deed in the relevant folio of the Register for the Land, or in the General Register of Deeds if this deed relates to land not under the Real property Act, including promptly responding to any requisitions made by the Registrar-General in respect of this deed and/or any ancillary documents.

6. Evidence of registration

- (a) The Developer must provide the Minister with evidence of the lodgement of this deed pursuant to clause 5 within 10 Business Days of such lodgement at the Land and Property Information.
- (b) The Developer will provide the Minister with a copy of the relevant folio of the Register and a copy of the registered dealing within 10 Business Days of registration of this deed.

Page 8 of 102 Pages

7. Expenses and Stamp Duty

- (a) The Developer must pay its own and the Minister's reasonable legal costs and disbursements in connection with the negotiation, preparation, execution and carrying into effect of this deed.
- (b) The Developer must pay for all costs and expenses associated with the giving of public notice of this deed and the Explanatory Note in accordance with the Regulation.
- (c) The Developer must pay all Taxes assessed on or in respect of this deed and any instrument or transaction required or contemplated by or necessary to give effect to this deed (including stamp duty and registration fees, if applicable).
- (d) The Developer must provide the Minister with bank cheques in respect of the Minister's costs pursuant to clauses 7(a) and (b):
 - i. where the Minister has provided the Developer with written notice of the sum of such costs prior to execution, on the date of execution of this deed; or
 - ii. where the Minister has not provided the Developer with prior written notice of the sum of such costs prior to execution, within 30 Business Days of demand by the Minister for payment.

8. Governing Law and Jurisdiction

This Deed is governed by the laws of New South Wales. In relation to it and related noncontractual matters each party irrevocably submits to the non-exclusive jurisdiction of courts with jurisdiction there, and waives any right to object to the venue on any ground.

9. Counterparts

This deed may be executed in any number of counterparts. All counterparts will be taken to constitute one instrument.

Page 9 of 102 Pages

SCHEDULE 1

Schedule 4

Development Contributions (clause 4)

1. Development Contributions

(a) The Developer undertakes to provide the Development Contribution in the manner set out in the table below:

Development Contribution (subject to clause 4)	Timing
Road Works The Developer must carry out and complete the Road Works in clauses 2.1 and 2.2 of Schedule 4.	In accordance with the process set out in clause 2 of this Schedule 4.
Monetary Contribution The Developer must pay a cash contribution to the Minister in the amount of \$182,898 per hectare of NDA of the Development towards the provision of regional transport infrastructure and services (subject to and adjusted in accordance with clause 2.4 of Schedule 4) in accordance with clause 3.1 of this Schedule 4.	Pursuant to clause 5 of this Schedule 4.

- (b) The parties agree that the Developer may apply any Road Works Offset in partial or full satisfaction of its obligation to pay a Contribution Amount for Stage 1 or Stage 2 of the Development as set out in clause 4.4 of this Schedule 4.
- (c) The Developer undertakes and agrees to carry out Development in accordance with the Stage of Development Plan.

2. Road Works

2.1 Conditions to Commencement of Road Works

Prior to commencement of the Road Works, the Developer must:

(a) provide evidence to the Minister that it has obtained Development Consent for the Road Works;

Page 10 of 102 Pages

- (b) enter into a WAD with the Road Authority, on such terms and conditions as are:
 - (i) consistent with the requirements of this deed, including this Schedule 4; and
 - (ii) acceptable to the Road Authority and the Minister,
- (c) provide a copy to the Minister of the executed WAD to carry out the Road Works; and
- (d) provide evidence to the Minister of the security provided for the Road Works under the WAD having regard to the requirements of clause 2 of Schedule 5 of this deed.

2.2 Timing of Road Works

- (a) The Developer must complete the Road Works in accordance with the WAD and by no later than the issue of a Construction Certificate, Complying Development Certificate or Subdivision Certificate for any part of the Development within Stage 2 of the Development.
- (b) Notwithstanding clause 2.2(a) the Developer will not be required to complete the Road Works prior to the issue of any Construction Certificate or Complying Development Certificate for Subdivision Works in any part of the Development.

2.3 Road Works Offset

- (a) Unless otherwise agreed with the Minister, within 3 months of the Road Works achieving Practical Completion, the Developer must provide to the Minister documentation that evidences the Actual Cost of the Road Works (Offset Documentation). The Offset Documentation is to include an independent certification of the Actual Cost from an independent quantity surveyor engaged by the Developer who is a member of the Australian Institute of Quantity Surveyors or an independent chartered professional engineer engaged by the Developer who is a member of Engineers Australia.
- (b) Within 3 months of the Offset Documentation being provided to the Minister, the Minister, acting reasonably, is to notify the Developer of the amount of the approved cost of the Road Works (Road Works Offset) under this deed having regard to the Estimated Cost Cap and Actual Cost of the Road Works.
- (c) The parties agree that, for the purpose of clause 2.3(b) of this Schedule 4, where:
 - the Actual Cost is greater than the Estimated Cost Cap, the Minister will give a Road Works Offset for the value of the Estimated Cost Cap (or any revised figure approved under clause 2.3(e)); and
 - the Actual Cost is lower than the Estimated Cost Cap, the Minister will give a Road Works Offset for the value of the Actual Cost.
- (d) The Developer acknowledges and agrees that it will not be entitled to any Road Works Offset in circumstances where the Roads Authority has exercised its step in rights under the WAD or the Developer otherwise fails to provide the Road Works pursuant to the WAD.
- (e) If the cost of the Road Works exceeds the Estimated Cost Cap, the Parties agree that within three months of the Road Works achieving Practical Completion, the Developer may submit to the Minister in writing:

Page 11 of 102 Pages

- (i) the reasons for the exceedance; and
- (ii) a recommendation for a revised Estimated Cost Cap.
- (f) The Minister may or may not, at the Minister's absolute discretion, agree in writing to an increase in the Estimated Cost Cap as a consequence of receiving written notification under clause 2.3(e).
- (g) If the Minister elects to agree to an increase under clause 2.3(e), despite anything else in this Deed, the Estimated Cost Cap is set at the increased monetary amount so determined in writing by the Minister.

2.4 Road Works Offset Credit

- (a) This clause 2.4(a) applies where the Developer seeks to apply the Road Works Offset in full or partial satisfaction of its obligation to pay the Development Contribution relating to Stage 1 of the Development in accordance with clause 3.1 of this Schedule (Stage 1 Contribution Amount).
 - (i) The Parties agree that the Developer will issue a written notice to the Minister of the Developer's intention to apply any Road Works Offset to the Stage 1 Contribution Amount (Offset Notice) and on receipt of the Offset Notice, the Minister will undertake a final reconciliation to calculate the difference between the Stage 1 Contribution Amount due and the Offset Amount (Stage 1 Final Reconciliation).
 - (ii) Where the Stage 1 Final Reconciliation indicates that the value of the Offset Amount exceeds the Stage 1 Contribution Amount, then the Developer will be entitled to a credit for the amount that the value of the Offset Amount exceeds the Stage 1 Contribution Amount (Excess Stage 1 Contributions Credit) in accordance with clause 2.4(a)(iii) of this Schedule 4.
 - (iii) Any Excess Stage 1 Contributions Credit which has been generated under this deed shall be used to satisfy (in whole or in part) the Developer's obligation to pay the Development Contribution relating to Stage 2 of the Development in accordance with clause 1 and clause 3.1 of this Schedule 4.
 - (iv) Where the Final Reconciliation indicates that the value of the Offset Amount is less than the Stage 1 Contribution Amount, then the Developer must pay the balance as a cash contribution to the Minister within 10 Business Days of receiving a notice from the Minister notifying the Developer of the outstanding Stage 1 Contribution Amount.
- (b) This clause 2.4(b) applies where the Developer:
 - (i) has not applied any Road Works Offset in relation to Stage 1 Contribution Amount;
 - (ii) is not in breach of its obligations to pay the Stage 1 Contribution Amount; and
 - seeks to apply to the Road Works Offset in full or partial satisfaction of its obligation to provide a monetary contribution for Stage 2 of the Development in accordance with clause 3.1 (Stage 2 Contribution Amount)

Page 12 of 102 Pages

- (A) The Parties agree that the Developer will issue a written notice to the Minister of the Developer's intention to apply any Road Works Offset to the Stage 2 Contribution (Offset Notice) and on receipt of Offset Notice, the Minister will undertake a final reconciliation to calculate the difference between the Stage 2 Contribution Amount due and the Offset Amount (Stage 2 Final Reconciliation).
- (B) Where the Stage 2 Final Reconciliation indicates that the value of the Offset Amount is less than the Stage 2 Contribution Amount, then the Developer must pay the balance as a cash contribution to the Minister within 10 Business Days of receiving a notice from the Minister notifying the Developer of the outstanding Stage 2 Contribution Amount.

3. Monetary Contributions

3.1 Payment of Monetary Contributions

(a) For the purposes of this Schedule, Net Developable Area, means the area of land, in hectares, of a part of the Land as defined and determined in accordance with the Net Developable Area Plan.

Stage of Development	Development Contribution	Value	Timing
1	Contribution Amount - Cash contribution towards provision of regional transport infrastructure and services	\$914,490 (being the Net Developable Area of Stage 1 (5.0 ha) x \$182,898) subject to clauses 2.4 and 4 of Schedule 4.	Pursuant to clause 5 of this Schedule 4.
2	Contribution Amount - Cash contribution towards provision of regional transport infrastructure and services	\$3,059,883.54 (being the Net Developable Area of Stage 2 (16.73ha) x \$182,898) subject to clauses 2.4 and 4 of Schedule 4.	Pursuant to clause 5 of this Schedule 4
3	Contribution Amount – Cash contribution towards provision of regional	\$680,380.56 (being the Net Developable Area of Stage 3	Pursuant to clause 5 of this Schedule 4

(b) The Developer undertakes to provide the following Development Contribution to the Minister in the manner set out in the table below:

Page 13 of 102 Pages

transport infrastructure and services	(3.72ha) x \$182,898) subject to clause 4 of Schedule 4.	
---------------------------------------	--	--

(c) The Minister and Developer acknowledge and agree that the sum of the Contribution
 Amounts form the Development Contribution under this deed in addition to the carrying out of the Road Works.

4. Calculation of the indexed value of a Contribution Amount

(a) On each CPI Adjustment Date, the value of the Contribution Amount for a Stage of Development in the table in clause 3.1(b) is to be adjusted by multiplying that amount payable by an amount equal to the Current CPI divided by the Base CPI.

5. Payment of Contribution Amounts

- (a) The Developer must pay to the Minister or the Minister's nominee the Contribution Amount in respect of a Stage of Development:
 - (i) before any Subdivision Certificate or Construction Certificate is issued for any part of the Development in that Stage of Development;
 - (ii) if any part of the Development is to be carried out without the need for a Subdivision Certificate or a Construction Certificate, then both;
 - (A) before that Development is commenced in that Stage of Development; and
 - (B) before any application for a Complying Development Certificate is made in respect of that Development in that Stage of Development;

whichever is earlier.

- (b) Notwithstanding clause 5(a) the Developer will not be required to pay any Contribution Amount in respect of a Stage of Development prior to the issue of:
 - (i) any Subdivision Certificate for Super Lot Subdivision; or
 - (ii) any Construction Certificate or Complying Development Certificate for Subdivision Works.
- (c) Notwithstanding clause 5(a) the Developer will not be required to pay any Contribution Amount in respect of a Stage of Development prior to the issue of any Construction Certificate or Complying Development Certificate or for Exempt Development for the Brickworks Operations.
- (d) The parties agree that the requirement to make a payment under this clause is a restriction on the issue of the relevant Subdivision Certificate within the meaning of section 109J(1)(c1) of the Act.

Page 14 of 102 Pages

(e) The parties agree that the requirement to make a payment under this clause is a restriction on the issue of the relevant Construction Certificate within the meaning of section 109F(1) of the Act and clause 146A of the Regulation.

Page 15 of 102 Pages

SCHEDULE 2

Schedule 5

Security Terms (clause 5.1)

1. Security for Development Contribution

- (a) In order to secure the payment or performance of the Development Contribution the Developer has agreed to provide security in the form of Bank Guarantees.
- (b) The Bank Guarantee must:
 - (i) name the "Minister for Planning" and the "Department of Planning and Environment ABN 38 755 709 681" as the relevant beneficiaries; and
 - (ii) not have an expiry date.

2. Bank Guarantee for Road Works

- (a) In order to secure the carrying out of the Road Works in accordance with Schedule 4 of this deed and the WAD the Developer has agreed to provide security in accordance with this Schedule 5.
- (b) If, upon execution of this deed, the Developer has:
 - (i) entered into a WAD with the Roads Authority in relation to the Road Works;
 - provided security to the Roads Authority for the Estimated Cost Cap of the Road Works under the WAD or such other figure to the satisfaction of the Roads Authority; and
 - satisfied the Minister, in the Minister's absolute discretion, as to the adequacy of the security provided to the Roads Authority for the Road Works including providing all information reasonably required by the Minister regarding the security provided under the WAD,

the Minister will accept the security provided under the WAD as security for the performance of the Developer's obligation under Schedule 4 of this deed to carry out the Road Works, and will provide written notification to the Developer of the Minister's position under this clause 2(a) within 20 Business Days of receiving all required information from the Developer regarding the security provided under the WAD.

- (c) If, upon execution of this deed, the Developer has not entered into a WAD with the Roads Authority in relation to the Road Works, the Developer must provide a Bank Guarantee to the Minister for the Estimated Cost Cap of the Road Works (the Road Works Bank Guarantee), to secure its obligation to carry out the Road Works.
- (d) If, following execution of this deed, the Developer;

Page 16 of 102 Pages

- (i) enters into a WAD with the Roads Authority in relation to the Road Works in accordance with this deed;
- provides security to the Roads Authority for the Estimated Cost Cap of the Road Works under the WAD; and
- satisfies the Minister, in the Minister's absolute discretion, as to the adequacy of the security provided to the Roads Authority for the Road Works including providing all information reasonably required by the Minister regarding the security provided under the WAD,

the Minister will accept the security provided under the WAD as securing the performance of the Developer's obligation under Schedule 4 of this deed to carry out the Road Works, and will provide written notification to the Developer of the Minister's position under this clause 2(c) within 20 Business Days of receiving all required information from the Developer regarding the security provided under the WAD.

- (e) Where clause 2(d) of this Schedule 5 applies, the Minister will return the Road Works Bank Guarantee provided by the Developer under clause 2(b) of this Schedule 5 within 20 Business Days of the Minister notifying the Developer of the Minister's acceptance of the security provided under the WAD.
- (f) If the Developer does not satisfy the Minister as to the adequacy of the security provided for the Roads Works under the WAD in accordance with clause 2(b) or clause 2(c) of this Schedule 5, then:
 - the Developer will be required to provide a Bank Guarantee for the difference between the amount of the security provided under the WAD and the Estimated Cost Cap of the Road Works (the Top Up Road Works Bank Guarantee);
 - (ii) upon receipt of the Top Up Road Works Bank Guarantee required by the Minister under clause 2(f)(i) of this Schedule 5, the Minister will accept that Top Up Road Works Bank Guarantee and the security provided under the WAD as securing the performance of the Developer's obligation under Schedule 4 of this deed to carry out the Road Works; and
 - (iii) the Minister will return the Road Works Bank Guarantee provided under clause 2(c) of this Schedule 5 to the Developer within 10 Business Days of receiving the Bank Guarantee under clause 2(f)(i) of this Schedule 5.

3. Claims under a Bank Guarantee for Road Works

- (a) The Minister may call upon the Road Works Bank Guarantee or Top Up Road Works Bank Guarantee provided in accordance with clause 2(c) and 2(f) of this Schedule 5 where the Developer has failed to complete the Road Works in accordance with Schedule 4 of this deed and retain and apply such monies towards:
 - (i) achieving performance of the Road Works; and
 - (ii) the Costs incurred by the Minister in rectifying any default by the Developer under this deed.

Page 17 of 102 Pages

- (b) Prior to calling upon a Bank Guarantee(s) the Minister must give the Developer not less than 10 Business Days written notice.
- (c) If:
 - (i) the Minister calls upon a Bank Guarantee(s); and
 - (ii) applies all or part of such monies towards the Costs incurred by the Minister in rectifying any default by the Developer under this deed; and
 - (iii) has notified the Developer of the call upon the Bank Guarantee(s) in accordance with clause 3(b) of this Schedule 5,

then the Minister may request that the Developer provide an additional Guarantee(s) to secure performance of the Developer's obligations under this Deed in accordance with clause 4 of this Schedule 5.

4. Right to Call for Additional Security

- (a) Notwithstanding clause 2 of this Schedule 5, if the Minister, acting reasonably, at any time considers that an additional Bank Guarantee(s) is required to secure the Developer's obligations under this deed, the Developer must provide such additional Bank Guarantee(s) for the amount specified by the Minister within 10 Business Days of a written request by the Minister and clauses 3 and 5 of this Schedule 5 apply.
- (b) Without limiting the operation of clause 4(a) of this Schedule 5, the Minister may require the Developer to provide a Bank Guarantee for an amount determined by the Minister if it becomes apparent to the Minister that the value of the Development Contribution to be provided under this deed will be less than the Contribution Amount.

5. Release of Road Works Bank Guarantee(s)

- lf:
- the Developer has satisfied all of its obligations under this deed secured by a Road Works Bank Guarantee or Top Up Road Works Bank Guarantee; and
- (b) the whole of the monies secured by the Road Works Bank Guarantee or Top Up Road Works Bank Guarantee have not been expended and the monies accounted for in accordance with clause 3 of this Schedule 5,

then the Minister will promptly return the Road Works Bank Guarantee or Top Up Road Works Bank Guarantee (less any costs, charges, duties and taxes payable), or the remainder of the monies secured by the Bank Guarantee(s) (as the case may be), to the Developer.

6. Bank Guarantee for Stage of Development

- (a) At the time the Developer signs this deed, the Developer undertakes to provide a Bank Guarantee to the Minister having a face value amount of \$20,000 (Base Bank Guarantee) in order to secure the payment of the Development Contribution for Stages 2 and 3.
- (b) Prior to applying for any Construction Certificate or Complying Development Certificate for Subdivision Works in respect of Stages 2 and/or 3 of Development, the Developer

Page 18 of 102 Pages

undertakes to provide a Bank Guarantee to the Minister for a face value equivalent to the Contribution Amount for that Stage of Development in order to secure the payment of the Development Contribution as it relates to that Stage of Development (Stage of Development Bank Guarantee).

- (c) From the date of execution of this Deed until the date the Developer pays the Contribution Amount for a Stage of Development the Minister will be entitled to retain the Bank Guarantee for a Stage of Development subject to clause 4 below.
- (d) From the date of execution of this deed until the date that the Developer has provided the Development Contribution for Stages 2 and 3 in full, the Minister will be entitled to retain the Base Bank Guarantee subject to clause 4 below.

7. Claims under Stage of Development Bank Guarantees

- (a) The Minister may:
 - (i) call upon the Stage of Development Bank Guarantee or the Base Bank Guarantee where the Developer has failed to pay a Contribution Amount for Stages 2 and/or 3 of Development on or after the date for payment under this deed; and
 - (ii) retain and apply such monies towards the Contribution Amount and any costs and expenses incurred by the Minister in rectifying any default by the Developer under this deed.
- (b) Prior to calling upon the Stage of Development Bank Guarantee or Base Bank Guarantee the Minister must give the Developer not less than 10 Business Days written notice of his or her intention to call on the Stage of Development Bank Guarantee or Base Bank Guarantee.
- (c) If:
 - (i) the Minister calls upon the Base Bank Guarantee; and
 - applies all or part of such monies towards the Contribution Amount in respect of Stages 2 and/or 3 of Development and any costs and expenses incurred by the Minister in rectifying any default by the Developer under this deed; and
 - (iii) has notified the Developer of the call upon the Base Bank Guarantee in accordance with clause 2(b) of this Schedule 5,

then the Developer must provide to the Minister a replacement Base Bank Guarantee to ensure that at all times until the date that the Base Bank Guarantee is released in accordance with clause 8 of this Schedule, the Minister is in possession of a Base Bank Guarantee for a face value equivalent to \$20,000.

8. Release of Bank Guarantees

- (a) If:
 - the Developer paid the Contribution Amount for Stages 2 and 3 Development and has satisfied all of its obligations under this deed secured by the Bank Guarantee for that Stage of Development; and

Page 19 of 102 Pages

 the whole of the monies secured by the Stage of Development Bank Guarantee has not been expended and the monies accounted for in accordance with clause 3 of this Schedule 5,

then the Minister will promptly return the Stage of Development Bank Guarantee (less any costs, charges, duties and taxes payable), or the remainder of the monies secured by the Stage of Development Bank Guarantee (as the case may be), to the Developer.

(b)

If:

- (i) the Developer paid the Development Contribution and has satisfied all of its obligations under this deed secured by the Base Bank Guarantee; and
- the whole of the monies secured by the Base Bank Guarantee has not been expended and the monies accounted for in accordance with clause 2 of this Schedule 5,

then the Minister will promptly return the Base Bank Guarantee (less any costs, charges, duties and taxes payable), or the remainder of the monies secured by the Base Bank Guarantee (as the case may be), to the Developer.

Page 20 of 102 Pages

Page 19 of 21

SCHEDULE 3

Annexure C

Page 21 of 102 Pages



FOR ROAD ACT APPROVAL

LOCALITY PLAN

SIS:

DA 893.1/2013 LOT 1, DP 106143 LGA FAIRFIELD COUNCIL

O, DRAWING TITLE
ENERAL
10 COVER SHEET
11 GENERAL NOTES & LEGEND
12 GENERAL ARRANGEMENT PLAN
03 FUTURE WORKS PLAN
EDIMENT & EROSION CONTROL
11 SEDIMENT & EROSION CONTROL PLAN
12 SEDIMENT & EROSION CONTROL NOTES & DETAILS
ITE REGRADING
11 SITE REGRADING PLAN
NGINEERING PLAN
11 ENGINEERING PLAN
11 LINEMARKING PLAN
OAD CROSS SECTIONS
11 ACCESS ROAD CROSS SECTIONS SHEET 01 OF 02
2 ACCESS ROAD CROSS SECTIONS SHEET 02 OF 02
OAD LONGITUDINAL SECTIONS
11 ACCESS ROAD LONGITUDINAL SECTION
ITERSECTION PLANS
11 ACCESS ROAD ALIGNMENT PLAN 01 OF 02
12 ACCESS ROAD ALIGNMENT PLAN 02 OF 02
RAFFIC MANAGEMENT
ID TURNING PATHS
RAINAGE
11 CATCHMENT PLAN
11 DRAINAGE LONGITUDINAL SECTIONS LINE No.01-03
21 DRAINAGE CALCULATIONS

902 CULVERT BASE SLAB DETAILS 910 RETAINING WALL PLAN AND LONGITUDINAL SECTION STRUCTURAL 901 TYPICAL STRUCTURAL PIT DETAILS

11 RETAINING WALL DETAILS



Page 22 of 102 Pages

Stopes: Milestone: Ding Vo.: Renno - RAA 001 03	Ртцестко.: 15-001115_15-16		DATE CSR HORSLEY PARK - OLD WALLGROVE ROAD WIDENING ROAD & DRAINAGE DESIGN	AUTHORITY OR LUKESS OTHERWARE HOTED.	EL CK SG 199042011 Desgn[Check] Appd. Dete
GENERAL NOTES & LEGEND	GENERAL N	0	BY: STUART GREEN FEAust OPEny, Manager - Urban Development SCA	ALL DAMAGENESS AND ADDRESS AND ADDRESS	Image: state Image: state<
FOR ROAD ACT APPROVAL	AD ACT	FOR RO			CO4. PRES GREATER THAN 7502 ARE TO BE CONSTRUCTED FROM SULPHATE RESISTANT CEMENT,
					Vice PPES OF 07 07 AND SPACE BE CIVES INVECTED WITH SPECIFIC AND SCICIENT IN DESERT RING JOINTS AND BE OF FREE REINFORCEMENT AND ALL COMPAREMENTS AND A SPACE AND A SPACE AND A SPACE REINFORCEMENT AND A SPACE AND A SPACE REINFORCEMENT AND A SPACE AND A SPACE PPE JOINTS AND A SPACE AND A SPACE PPE JOINTS AND A SPACE AND A SPACE PPE JOINTS AND A SPACE
	-		VIAL BEFORE		
G		TREES TO REMOVED WITHIN SHE TREES TO REMOVED WITHIN SHE		S15, SOL MO WATER MANGENEAT PLANS ARE TO BE PREPARED FOR ALL DISTURBED STES AND ADHERED TO AT ALL TIMES DURING THE CONSTRUCTION AND MAINTEMAKE PERIODS.	SURVEYOR CUBER CONSULTING -D'AL HOBELY PARK ROOK PANT. NGA Z55 SURVEY DATED 25 JANE 2013 -BOJADARY X13044 SH DATED 29 APRL 2013
	D-LOTNO	LOT NUMBERS	IN THE APPROVED PLANS OR THE PRINCIPAL CERTIFINING		CALIBRE CONSULTING GENERAL CG1. SURVEY SOURCED FROM
		FENCE POST AND RAL FENCE SECURITY FENCE	URNG AND SEDMENTATION FOR ALL DRAMAGE WORKS STINCTION STENCE, AVALABLE FROM COLINCIL	 ADECULATE FROMENON IS TO BE MADE TO PREPAY ISCULTANG AND SETMENTATION FOR ALL DRAWAGE WORKS IN ADECOMMENT WITH COUNCILS REQUIREMENTS. FIT UNTELS ARE TO BE STERVELLED WITH APPLICABLE DISTINCTION STERVEL AVALABLE FROM COLINCIL 	RHSES AND OTHER CONCERE STRUCTURES MILEDUKTLY. AFTER THE COMPLETION OF THE FOOTPAHL GAUNIG OR OTHER ELEMENT AS A PRACULE, AND SHALL BE MAINTANED AND REPLACED AS RECURED DURING THE CONSTRUCTION MAINTERANCE FERIOD.
	1	LIMIT OF STAGE	ELMEATE THE EXTENT LOCATION OF FLOOD LINES		AND CONSTRUCTION PRODUCED BY LANDCOM E8 A MINIMUM 1 METRE WIDE CONTINUOUS STRP OF COUCH GRASS SHALL BE PLACED BEIND THE BACK OF ALL
		LIMIT OF ROAD CONSTRUCTION	SHOWN ON WORKS AS EXECUTED URAWINGS.	S10. 1% AEP OVERLAND FLOW PATHS MUST BE FORMED AND SHOWN ON WORKS AS EXECUTED DRAWINGS,	E7. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CONTROL SEDMENTATION, EROSION AND FOLUTION DURING CONSTRUCTION IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE CURRENT EDITION OF MANAGING URBAN STORMWATER SOLLS
	H 0 1	SERVICE PITS TELECOM PIT, ACCESS CHAMBER, HYDRANT, STOP VALVE, AIR VALVE	AFTER SYDNEY WATER SEMERAGE LINES HAVE BEEN VIEDELLONDERT DOMMAGE LINES.	SS INTERALIOTMENT DRAMAGE LINES MIST DE INSTALLED AFTER SYDNEY WATER SCHERAGE LINES HAVE BED INSTALLED WHERE SEWER IS PROPOSED ADJACENT TO INTERALIOTMENT DRAMAGE LINES.	ES PROVIDE IMMUMI 150 MA AND MAXIMUM SOMM TORSOL WITH OH FOOTPAINS FLIED SHEES AND ALL OTHER AREA DESTURED DIARIA CONSTRUCTIVA TORSOLEM AREAS TO BE REALINED WITH APPROVED VEGETATION A MAXIMUM OF 14 DAYS AFTER TOPSOLENG AND ARE TO BE WATERED TO ENSURE GERMINATION.
1	*	OVER HEAD LINES AND POLES	SURALLY WITHIN DRAINAGE EASEMENTS, NISPECTION	SB. ALLINTERALIOTMENT DRAINAGE LINES MUST BE LAD CENTRALLY WITHIN DRAINAGE EASEMENTS, INSPECTION PTTS MUST BE PROVIDED AT ALL CHANGES OF GRADE AND DRECTION.	
	ļ	COMMUNICATION LINES TELSTRA, FIBRE OPTIC	IPPE DIANETURO FI ISI MAI AND A MINIMUM OUNCIL ENCAMEER.	57. ALL INTERALIOTMENT DRANAGE MUST HAVE A MINIMUM PRE DIAMETER OF 150 MAI AND A MINIMUM GRADE OF 1% UNLESS OTHERWISE APPROVED BY THE COUNCIL ENGINEER.	
		SERVICE LINES SEWER GAS, WATER, ELECTRICITY	THOR S2MPA AT 25-DAYS UNLESS OTHERWISE	S6. CONCRETE IS TO HAVE MINIMIM COMPRESSIVE STRENGTH OF 32MPA AT 26-DAYS UNLESS OTHERWISE APPROVED BY THE COUNCIL ENGINEER	
		SITE REGRADING AREA	TE SUZ? RENFORCEMENT AND GALVANISED STEP 3 FROM THE TOP OF GRATE TO THE INVERT OF THE PIT.	SS. ALL PITS MUST BE BENOHED AND STREAM ANED, PROVIDE SUZ REINFORCEMENT AND GAU VANKED STEP IRONS IN ALL PITS OVER 12-METRES DEEP AS MEASURED FROM THE TOP OF GRATE TO THE INVERT OF THE PIT.	E3. THE SUITABLE CUALIFIED SECOTECHNICAL ENGINEER, SHALL HAVE A LEVEL 1 RESPONSIBILITY FOR ALL FILLING AS DEFINED IN APPENDIX 8 AS378 (3) IDDILINES ON EARTHWORK SPR COMMERCIAL AND RESIDENTIAL DOED OWNERS AND A THE ENGINEER ON EXEMPTION FOR COMMERCIAL AND RESIDENTIAL DOED OWNERS AND A THE ENGINEER ON EXEMPTION FOR COMMERCIAL AND RESIDENTIAL DOED OWNERS AND A THE ENGINEER ON EXEMPTION FOR COMMERCIAL AND RESIDENTIAL DOED OWNERS AND A THE ENGINEER ON EXEMPTION FOR COMMERCIAL AND RESIDENTIAL DOED OWNERS AND A THE ENGINEER ON EXEMPTION FOR COMMERCIAL AND RESIDENTIAL DOED OWNERS AND A THE ENGINEER ON EXEMPTION FOR COMMERCIAL AND RESIDENTIAL DOED OWNERS AND A THE ENGINEER ON EXEMPTION FOR COMMERCIAL AND RESIDENTIAL DOED OWNERS AND A THE ENGINEER ON EXEMPTION FOR COMMERCIAL AND RESIDENTIAL DOED OWNERS AND A THE ENGINEER ON EXEMPTION FOR COMMERCIAL AND RESIDENTIAL DOED OWNERS AND A THE FOR COMMERCIAL AND RESIDENTIAL OF THE RESIDENTIAL OF THE RESIDENTIAL DOED OWNERS AND A THE FOR COMMERCIAL AND RESIDENTIAL OF THE RESIDENT AND RESIDENTIAL OF THE RESIDENT AND RESIDEN
1	10000	CONTOURS	2EMTRALLY PLACED AT SAG PITS.	S4 ALL GULLY PITS TO COUNCIL'S STANDARD AND LINTELS CENTRALLY PLACED AT SAG PITS	WHERE IT IS PROPOSED TO USE TEST METHOD AS1788 S 51 TO DETEMMINE THE FIELD DENSITY, A SAND REPLACEMENT METHOD SHALL BE USED TO CONFIRM THE RESULTS.
		CONCRETE PATHWAY	GRANULARINATERIA, IN ITRAFFICIALE AFEAS, THREE ITLE STOCKING MUST BE PROVIDED TO ALL	53. DRAMAGE LINES MAST BE BACKTLLED WITH APPROVED GRAVULAS MATERIA. IN TRAFFICIALE AREAS, THREE DOWNERGE OF SUBSCIL DRAMAGE WRAPPED IN GEOTEXTLE STOCKING MUST BE PROVIDED TO ALL DOWNERGEW 1973.	C. COMPACING VECTOR INTERNAL CONTINUE VIII, A DAY DESITI YAI DE 45 DOMINI, DEGLOMENTI, 1005 FG NOOF VANCINE VIII DIMENSI AND
ant		BATTERS	ED UNDER KERBAND GUTTER AND BE BACIFILED WITH PPROVED BY THE COUNCIL ENGINEEN.		
▲ BM: 115 RL:105.32		BENCHMARK	NTED	STORMAYATER S1. ALL PIPES TO BE SPIGOT AND SOCKET RUBBER RING JOINTED	EARTHWORKS E1, EARTHWORKS ARE TO BE CARRED OUT TO THE SATISFACTION OF THE COUNCIL, UNSUITABLE MATERIALS ARE TO
		ROAD PAVEMENT			CONTECT
exist, eog	EOB	EDGE OF BITUMEN	LED BY THE CONTRACTOR.	R12 STREET SKANS TO COUNCIL STANDARD MUST BE INSTALLED BY THE CONTRACTOR	
and the second s	R	PEDESTRIAN RAMP	(KER® FACE	R11. ALL LOT AND HOUSE NUMBERS MUST BE STENCILLED ON KERB FACE	67 — ALL RUBRISH BUILDINGS SHEDS AND FEWORS TO BE BEAMVED TO SATISFANTION OF COUNCILS ENGINEED
EXIST, VC FUT, VC	5	VEHICULAR CROSSING	DOWNERSMIN UNSISSE VERTIGENDE DE ENRU PUPOSES AL APONE UN GERDRACE DESTRUC PUPOSES AL APONE DUCTE IMPERIMENTAL E CENARTORIS DE FOELSETTRE IMPERIMENTAL PUPOFERROES DE FOELSOUT, REVERE COMMITTEE	MATERIALS AND DEVICES DONE NO TRAFER MARKED IN INFORMED IN LOSSING RELEVED DE DISTRU- MATERIALS DO DEVICES DONE NOU CONTROL ENVIRONMENTO DE PEDERONA MOI CERE PAZE DON CENTRAL BLANDS OF RAVINDADUTS AND ALL OFFERENZANS TO DE CELEVACIÓN DE PEDERONA MOI CERE PAZE DONE DISTRU- INSTALLATION SANL DOCORTA INCOCEDANCE MINTI TREE LONAUMENTOS DE PEDERONA DOCORTA DOCORDANCE MOI TANÉM INSTALLATION SANL DOCORTA INCOCEDANCE MINTI TREE DAVINAMENTOS DE PEDERONA DOCORTA DOCORDANCE MOI TANÉM	PERMISSION FROM THE OWNERS. PERMISSION FROM THE OWNERS. OS OVERLUKA PLOCESS AND ALL UTILITIESSENADES ARE TO BE MAINTAINED AT ALL TIMES TO ADJOINING
EXIST DC FUI, DO	R	DISH CROSSING	A CALE AND A CONTROL DEWES FOR CENERAL	R10. SIGNPOSTING AND UNE MARKING SHALL CONFORM TO AST	
EXIST MK FUT MK	MX	MOUNTABLE KERB	E COAT FLUSH SELL AND SO MA OF AS TO BE FEN STOBE AS TO AND ST OBE BONNED WITH NRCh	PO ALL PERMANENT ROADS MAST BE SEALED WITH A SINGLE COAT FLUSH SEAL, AND SO MM OF AC TO BE APPLIED IN TWO 25 MAI THAK LAVERS, THE FINAL AC LAVERS TO BE AC 10 AND IS TO BE BONDED WITH COMMULAND PLACED FLORMING ASPROVAL REAV. COLMICAT	G3. NO TREES ARE TO BE REMOVED UNLESS APPROVAL IS GRAVIED BY COUNCIL'S LANDSCAPE COMPLANCE OFFICER OR AS AUTHORISED BY DEVELOPMENT CONSENT.
EXIST, ES PUT, ES	5	EDGE STRIP) WITH A SINGLE COAT FLUSH SEAL	R8, ALL TEMPORARY ROADS MUST BE TEMPORARLY SEALED WITH A SINGLE COAT FLUSH SEAL	(G) FINAL, NSPECTIONS AFTER ALL WORKS ARE COMPLETED AND WORKS AS EXECUTED FLANS HAVE BEEN SUBMITTED TO COUNCIL.
EXIST KO FUT KO	KO	KERB ONLY) WITH COUNCIL PENDING COMPLETION OF	R7. CONCRETE FOOTPATH CONSTRUCTION IS TO BE BONDED WITH COUNCIL PENDING COMPLETION OF UTILITY/SERVICES AND SURROUNDING OWELLINGS	(F) PRIOR TO BACKFLLING PUBLIC UTILITY CROSSINGS IN ROAD RESERVES
	R	ROLL KERB AND GUTTER	G FOLODE SHALL BE PROVIDED FOR INSING A TRENCHLESS ACE. ALL SERVICE CONDUTIS UNDER ROUGS MOST BE	R. PROPOSED UT UTIES AND SERVICES CROSSING EXALS SHALL BE FROMBED FOR USING A TRENCHLESS TECHNIQUE SOL SINOT TO DAMAGE THE EXISTING SUPFACE. ALL SERVICE CONDUITS UNDER ROADS MUST BE UND TO A MINMAMORETH OF 750 MM.	(E) FORMANCING FRIGHTO POURING CONCRETE IN PARKING AREA FOR FOOTPATH CROSSING AND OTHER ASSOCIATED WORK
	K&G	150mm (EBB AND GUITER	PUBLIC UTILITY AUTHORITIES INCLUDING INTEGRAL	R5. SERVICE CONDURS TO BE PLACED AS DRECTED BY ALL PUBLIC UTLITY AUTHORITIES INCLUDING INTEGRAL ENERGY, TELSTRA AND SYCHEY WATER	(D) FRORT OF PLACEMENT OF SUBBLISE AND ALL SUBSEQUENT FAVEMENT LAVERS, A PROOF ROLLER TEST OF EACH PAYEMENT LAVER IS RECURRED.
		SUBSOIL DRAIN	Yed in All Kerry Returns, and Where Required by	R4. UPLESS PERAMBULATOR CROSSINGS ARE TO BE PROVIDED IN ALL KERP RETURNS AND WHERE REQUIRED BY COUNCL.	(מ) היאטריה יוס שהיארין בעופר וירבוארים, אינטיסטין, עראינוי אייע עראיינט. (ג) PRORT to CASTING OF PITS AND OTHER CONCELES FRUCTURES, BICLIDING KEBB AND GUTTER BUT היו האשוניה כא והיה שינה יה ההיארוניה ביראש אינטיאניין אינט השוניהסיביראשניי
1	1	CONCRETE HEADWALL	"JACED IN ALL KERB TYPES ON LOW SIDE OF LOTS, 7 40 MAI DANKETER STORMMATER PPE	R3. 150 X 50 HD, GALVANISED STEEL KERG OUTLETS TO BE FLACED IN ALL KERG TYPES ON LOW SIDE OF LOTS. PROVIDE SUITABLE ADAPTOR TO ALLOW CONNECTION OF 30 MAIDIANETER STORMMATER PPE	(A) FOLLOWING INSTALLATION OF EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL STRUCTURESMEASURES.
3	370	DRAINAGE LINE No. 3 DRAINAGE PTT No. 10	3405 (EXCEPT WHERE THERE IS STORMMATER	R2SUBSOL DRAWS TO BE FROMDED ON BOTH SIDES OF ROADS (EXCEPT WHERE THERE IS STORMWATER DRAMMOE);	G2. INSPECTIONS BY CERTIFYING AUTHORITY ARE RECURED AT THE FOLLOWING STAGES AND THE WORKS APPROVED PRIOR TO CONTINUANCE OF ANY AUTURE WORK:
日間開発の	6	STORMWATER DRAINAGE PITS	ACCORDANCE WITH COUNCILS CONSTRUCTION	R1, SUBGRADES AND SUB BASES ARE TO BE COMPACTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH COUNCIL'S CONSTRUCTION SPECIFICATION.	G1. ALL WORK TO SE CARRED OUT IN ACCORDANCE WITH FAIRFIELD COLNCIL'S ENCINEERING DESIGN AND ENGINEERING CONSTRUCTION SPECIFICATIONS AND TO THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE CERTIFYING AUTHORITY.
	3750	STORMWATER PIPELINE		ROADWORKS	GENERAL
EXISTING FUTURE	LEGEND	DESCRIPTION			GENERAL NOTES

Page 23 of 102 Pages



Page 24 of 102 Pages



Page 25 of 102 Pages



Page 26 of 102 Pages



page 27 of 102



Page 28 of 102 Pages



Page 29 of 102 Pages



page 30 of 102 Pages



page 31 of 102 Pages

20042016 Compared in SD FOR FOR ROAD ACT APPROVAL SD FOR FORD ACT APPROVAL W.A.E. LEVEL DESIGN LEVEL EXISTING LEVEL WAE. LEVEL DESIGN LEVEL EXISTING LEVEL W.A.E. LEVEL DESIGN LEVEL EXISTING LEVEL LEVEL W.A.E. LEVEL DESIGN LEVEL EXISTING LEVEL LEVEL OFFSET OFFSET EDF . **Revision Details** ROY HOY BDY 12 005 11 754 -10 854 -10 854 75 47 75 40 71 79 75 84 7539 754 7531 7541 7541 7544 75.17 75.18 74.98 75.28 75.33 7 589 -7 688 -8 488 -5 589 -4 1/89 CH 255 KTP 235.85 CH 270 CH 240 8 05 0 20 40 50 80 100 120 140 150 160 200 SCALE 1 200 (A1) SCALE 1 400 (A3) 4 771 5 771 8 74 75.93 75.98 75.77 4.35 75.58 5 85 75 63 8.38 8 939 76 28 1 496 16.34 511.439 11.217 24.33 74.13 76 38 78 32 10 996 DATUM RU, 18 DATION RL 85 ONTOWRU, 68 SATUMPL M NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION UNLESS STAMPED BY CERTIFYING AUTHORITY OR UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED unanew and Copyright ALL DeelStocky To B& Cheford D on still by Contraction reads to construction, use wetter constructions on, y po wort scale. 33 15 10Y 101 3.062 7439 7439 7419 7449 7458 7474 7476 7456 7456 7456 43 7373 7373 7403 7407 73 Mi 73 31 74 31 74 25 CH 300 CH 285 CH 330 CH 315 -35 JA 36 1.55 74 28 74 03 74 04 14.25 74.42 11.17 85 \$ 706 A STUART OF A 5 206 15 17 7479 74.55 74.25 5 8 109 5 4014 lina 31000 6 963 743 74 02 sor 804 DATUMPLY SI DATUM RL. W CSR HORSLEY PARK - OLD WALLGROVE ROAD WIDENING ROAD & DRAINAGE DESIGN DATIMRL 48 CATINARI, SA 807 801 601 1315 1210 1211 1312 7373 7341 7371 -5733 7383 73位 73位 87X 163 1763 1793 1793 KTP 386.208 CH 345 CH 360 73.9 -3 532 /376 35 CH 375 73 92 186 CSR #3.92 73.92 34.19 34.23 7331 nn 74.09 \$ 73 85 6531 6972 73 59 7 371 73 32 1554 73.15 DATION R.L. MA DADIANST R DATINI RUL 48 ©2016 801 LIMIT 398.979 6 110 6 -35 4.605 73 75 73 68 73 74 737 7344 7399 KTP 389.846 11.1 13.74 35 CONSULTING CH 390 FOR ROAD ACT APPROVAL 23.73 13.78 iπ 73.69 7375 7375 73 64 73 77 \$ \$23) 7621 13 09 ACCESS ROAD CROSS SECTIONS SHEET 02 OF 02 Projectio, 15,001115,15-16 ļ RAA 502 ឩ

page 32 of 102 Pages



Page 33 of 102 Pages





Page 35 of 102 Pages





Page 37 of 102 Pages



Page 38 of 102 Pages
Incluit M B. CM Devoce Induction Service August of Service Augus	A commentation of the second s		New Construction New Construction<	Image March March March March March March Date to Starm Image Starm Starm	DRAINS - HYDROLOGY/AT/DRAULIC CALCULATION SHEET TO FERE ARI MINOR STORM EDENT INFORMENTIAL INFORMENTIAL None None None None None	Nome Nome <th< th=""><th>DRAINS - HYDROLOGY/HYDRAUUC CALCULATION SHEET SYERA RI INROR STORMOTESTICK SYERA RI INROR STORMOTESTICK SYERA RI INROR STORMOTESTICK NAL STORMOTESTICK</th></th<>	DRAINS - HYDROLOGY/HYDRAUUC CALCULATION SHEET SYERA RI INROR STORMOTESTICK SYERA RI INROR STORMOTESTICK SYERA RI INROR STORMOTESTICK NAL STORMOTESTICK
- File	BY STUART GREEN FIEAusL CPErs Memoger - Utan Development		Sub_chromotromats Name Parent Parent <t< th=""><th>Strate Name <</th><th>CHAC Famel Gassad Pamel Gassad Sapp Due to Storm Non-O Marco Marco Namel Tr. T</th><th>Overall Control Control State Overall Control State Overall Control State Overall Control State <</th><th>TRUE Date to Sum Fined Funded Fanded Fanded Steps Date to Sum Fined Max Naco Naco Tr. Tr.</th></t<>	Strate Name <	CHAC Famel Gassad Pamel Gassad Sapp Due to Storm Non-O Marco Marco Namel Tr. T	Overall Control Control State Overall Control State Overall Control State Overall Control State <	TRUE Date to Sum Fined Funded Fanded Fanded Steps Date to Sum Fined Max Naco Naco Tr. Tr.
CSR HORSLEY PARK - OLD WALLGROVE ROAD WIDENING ROAD & DRAINAGE DESIGN	CSR		0.00001 0.00000000	s scorn, werage 92.4 mm/h, Zore 1			
CONSULTING BARGENE ABURST 15-001115,15-16 - RAA 821 13	DRAINAGE CALCULATIONS	FOR ROAD ACT APPROVAL					

Page 39 of 102 Parges



Page 40 of 102 Pages



Page 41 of 102 Pages



Page 42 of 102 Pages



page 43 of 102 Pages

Page 20 of 21

Execution page

Signed , sealed and delivered for and on behalf of the **Minister for Planning**, in the presence of:

Signature of witness

Name of witness in full

Signature of the Minister for Planning or

Delegate

Name of the Minister for Planning or delegate

Address of witness

Executed for and on behalf of CSR Building Products Limited (ACN 008 631 356) by its duly appointed attorney(s) registered book 4612 no 4695 NO. 629 571 in the presence of:

Signature of witness

JILLIAN HARDIMAN

Name of witness in full

Address of witness NOAL RYCL NSW 2113

Signature of attorney

Andrée Braun Taylor

......

Name of attorney By executing this deed the attorney states that the attorney has received no notice of revocation of the power of attorney

Signature of attorney

DEBBIE JEAN SCHROEDER

Name of attorney By executing this deed the attorney states that the attorney has received no notice of revocation of the power of attorney

Page 44 of 102 Pages

Page 21 of 21

ANNEXURE A

Conformed Principal Planning Agreement

Page 45 of 102 Pages

Planning Agreement

327-335 Burley Road, Horsley Park 2175

Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979

Minister for Planning (ABN 38 755 709 681)

CSR Building Products Limited (ACN 008 631 356)

Page 46 of 102 Pages

Table of contents

1.	Defin	itions and interpretation	3
	1.1 1.2	Definitions Interpretation	
2.	Oper	ation and application of this deed	8
	2.1 2.2 2.3	Operation Planning agreement under the Act Application	8
3.	Appli	cation of sections 94, 94A and 94EF of the Act	8
4.	Deve	lopment Contribution	8
	4.1 4.2 4.3 4.4	Developer to provide Development Contribution Special Infrastructure Contribution Acknowledgement Road Works Contribution	8 9
5.	Inter	est	9
	5.1	Interest for late payment	9
6.	Enfor	cement	10
	6.1	Developer to provide security	10
7.	Regis	tration	10
	7.1 7.2 7.3 7.4	Registration of deed Evidence of registration Release and discharge of deed Landowner's interest in Land	10 10
8.	Dispu	te Resolution	11
	8.1 8.2 8.3 8.4 8.5 8.6 8.7	Not commence Written notice of dispute Attempt to resolve Mediation Court proceedings Not use information No prejudice	11 11 11 11 11
9.	GST		11
	9.1 9.2 9.3 9.4 9.5 9.6 9.7 9.8	Definitions Intention of the parties Reimbursement Consideration GST exclusive Additional Amounts for GST Non monetary consideration Assumptions No merger	12 12 12 12 12 12
10.	Assig	nment and transfer	12
	10.1 10.2	Right to assign or novate Right to transfer Land	

Page 47 of 102 Pages

11.	Сара	city13		
	11.1	General warranties		
	11.2	Power of attorney 13		
12.	Repo	rting requirement14		
13.	Gene	ral Provisions14		
	13.1	Entire deed		
	13.2	Variation		
	13.3	Waiver		
	13.4	Further assurances 14		
	13.5	Time for doing acts 15		
	13.6	Governing law and jurisdiction		
	13.7	Severance		
	13.8	Preservation of existing rights 15		
	13.9	No merger 15		
	13.10) Counterparts		
	13.11	. Relationship of parties 15		
	13.12	2 Good faith		
	13.13	8 No fetter 16		
	13.14	Explanatory note 16		
	13.15	Expenses and stamp duty16		
	13.16	Notices 16		
Schee	dule 1.			
Schee	dule 2.			
Schee	Schedule 3 21			
Schee	Schedule 4			
Schee	dule 5.			

Page 48 of 102 Pages

This deed is dated

Parties:

Minister

Minister for Planning (ABN 38 755 709 681) of Level 15, 52 Martin Place, Sydney, New South Wales 2000

Developer

CSR Building Products Limited (ACN 008 631 356) of Trinity 3, 39 Delhi Road, North Ryde, NSW 2113

Introduction:

- A The Developer owns the Land.
- **B** The Developer has made a Development Application with the Consent Authority in respect of the Land for the Development.
- **C** Clause 29 of the SEPP provides that the Consent Authority must not grant Development Consent to the Development unless the Secretary has certified in writing to the Consent Authority that satisfactory arrangements have been made to contribute to the provision of regional transport infrastructure and services referred to in clause 29 of the SEPP.
- **D** The Developer has offered to enter into this deed with the Minister to secure the Development Contribution in order to enable the Secretary to provide the certification required by the SEPP.

It is agreed:

1. Definitions and interpretation

1.1 Definitions

In this **deed**, unless the context clearly indicates otherwise:

Act means the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 (NSW).

Actual Cost means:

- (i) the final certified contract cost of the Road Works inclusive of variations following compliance with all of the Developer's obligations under the WAD; and
- (ii) other costs (not exceeding in total an amount that is 15% of the amount in paragraph (i) above) reasonably incurred in the carrying out of the Road Works and paid by the Developer to third parties for the following:
 - (A) design of the Road Works, project management, fees, investigations, consultant fees, studies or reports specifically required for the Road Works;
 - (B) any licence, approval, authority, permit or permission specifically required to be obtained for or in relation to the carrying out of the Road Works; and
 - (C) other matters only where the approval of the Minister to the inclusion of such costs has been given in writing to the Developer.

S:4822065_3 BNF

Page 49 of 102 Pages

Address for Service means the address of each party appearing in Schedule 2 or any new address notified by any party to all other parties as its new Address for Service.

Authority means any Federal, State or local government or semi-governmental, statutory, judicial or public person, instrumentality or department.

Bank Guarantee means an irrevocable and unconditional undertaking:

- (b) by an Australian bank which is an eligible financial institution for the purposes of Treasury Circular NSW TC14/01 dated 24 January 2014 as amended, supplemented or substituted from time to time; and
- (c) on terms acceptable to the Minister, in the Minister's absolute discretion,

to pay the face value of that undertaking (being such amount as is required under this deed) on demand.

Base CPI means the CPI number for the quarter ending 31 March 2015.

Brickworks Operations means those works associated solely with the operation of the existing brick work factory on the existing industrial land only in Stage Three of the Stage of Development Plan.

Business Day means any day that is not a Saturday, Sunday, gazetted public holiday or bank holiday in Sydney, and concludes at 5 pm on that day.

Complying Development Certificate has the same meaning as in the Act.

Consent Authority has the same meaning as in the Act.

Contamination has the same meaning given to it in the Contaminated Land Management Act 1997 (NSW) and includes asbestos and lead.

Construction Certificate has the same meaning as in the Act.

Contribution Amount means the amount of the monetary contributions to be paid by the Developer as described in **Error! Reference source not found.**.

Costs means any loss, cost, fee, charge, expense, Tax, rate, fine, penalty or debts including those in connection with advisors and any compensation payable to any person in accordance with the law.

CPI means the Sydney Consumer Price Index (All Groups) published by the Commonwealth Statistician, or if that index no longer exists, any similar index that the Minister specifies, in his or her sole discretion, for the purposes of this deed.

CPI Adjustment Date means 1 July 2016 and each anniversary of 1 July 2016 thereafter.

Current CPI means the CPI number for the quarter ending immediately before 31 March in the financial year preceding the date of the relevant adjustment under clause 2(b) of **Error! Reference source not found.**

Dealing in relation to the Land means, without limitation, selling, transferring, assigning, mortgaging, charging, disposing, encumbering or otherwise dealing with the Land.

Developer means CSR Building Products Limited.

Development means the subdivision of the Land into approximately 14 industrial lots and 1 environmental conservation zoned lot generally in accordance with the Development Application

Page 50 of 102 Pages

DA893.1/2013 which has been lodged with Fairfield City Council, and the future development of the Land for industrial purposes including (but not limited to) manufacturing, warehousing, storage and research uses, industrial retail outlets, and warehouse or distribution centres, with associated public roads and drainage.

Development Application has the same meaning as in the Act.

Development Consent has the same meaning as in the Act.

Development Contribution means the contribution to be provided by the Developer in accordance with **Error! Reference source not found.**

Estimated Cost Cap means the sum of One Million Four Hundred Thousand dollars [\$1,400,000].

Exempt Development has the same meaning as in the Act.

Explanatory Note means the note exhibited with a copy of this deed when this deed is made available for inspection by the public pursuant to the Act, as required by the Regulation.

Final Reconciliation has the meaning given to that expression in clause 2.4(a) of Schedule 4.

General Register of Deeds means the land register maintained under the *Conveyancing Act 1919* (NSW) and so titled.

GST means any form of goods and services tax payable under the GST Legislation.

GST Legislation means the A New Tax System (Goods and Services Tax) Act 1999 (Cth).

Handover means to handover ownership and control of a part or the whole of the Road Works in accordance with the WAD.

Land means the land described in Schedule 3 of this deed.

Minister means the Minister for Planning and includes the Secretary, or other officer of the Department of Planning and Environment and includes the Minister's nominee, whether nominated before or after the date of this deed.

Mediation Program means the Mediation Program of the Law Society of New South Wales as published on its website and as varied from time to time.

Net Developable Area Plan means the plan annexed and marked "B" to this Deed.

Practical Completion means the Practical Completion of the Road Works in accordance with the WAD.

Real Property Act means the Real Property Act 1900 (NSW).

Register means the Torrens title register maintained under the Real Property Act.

Regulation means the Environmental Planning and Assessment Regulation 2000 (NSW).

Remediation has the meaning given to it in *State Environmental Planning Policy No.* 55 – *Remediation of Land* and **remediate** has a corresponding meaning.

Roads Authority has the meaning given to it in the Roads Act 1993 and includes RMS and Fairfield City Council.

Road Works means the improvement works to Old Wallgrove Road, generally in accordance with the Calibre Consulting plans titled "CSR Horsley Park – Old Wallgrove Road Widening – Road & Drainage Design for Road Act Approval" project number 15-001115.15.16 for drawing number

Page 51 of 102 Pages

001 revision 03, drawing number 002 revision 03, drawing number 003 revision 03, drawing number 101 revision 03, drawing number 102 revision 03, drawing number 201 revision 03, drawing number 301 revision 03, drawing number311 revision 03, drawing number 501 revision 03, drawing number 401 revision 03, drawing number 601 revision 03, drawing number 602 revision 03, drawing number 710 revision 03, drawing number 801 revision 03, drawing number 811 revision 03, drawing number 821 revision 03, drawing number 901 revision 03, drawing number 902 revision 03, drawing number 910 revision 03 and drawing number 911 revision 03 at Annexure C.

Road Works Offset has the meaning given to the expression in clause 2.3 of Schedule 4 of this Deed.

RMS means the Roads and Maritime Services ABN 76 236 371 088, a NSW Government agency and corporation constituted under section 46 of the Transport Administration act 1988 (NSW).

Satisfactory Arrangements Certificate means a certificate issued by the Secretary that satisfactory arrangements have been made to contribute to the provision of designated State public infrastructure in accordance with clause 29 of the SEPP.

Secretary means the Secretary of the Department of Planning and Environment from time to time (or nominee, whether nominated before or after the date of this deed).

SEPP means the State Environmental Planning Policy (Western Sydney Employment Area) 2009

Stage 1 Contribution Amount has the meaning given to it in clause 1(b) of Schedule 4.

Stage of Development means any stage in which Development of the Land for that stage is intended to occur as shown on the Stage of Development Plan.

Stage of Development Plan means the plan annexed and marked "B" to this Deed

Standard Instrument means the *Standard Instrument (Local Environmental Plans) Order 2006* as at the date of this Deed.

Subdivision Certificate has the same meaning as in the Act.

Subdivision Works means the carrying out of works in, on, under or over land only in connection with the subdivision of the Land, including the construction of roads and stormwater drainage, but which do not include the laying of slabs or floors or works in connection with a building.

Super Lot Subdivision means subdivision of the Land into two or more lots and which does not include any works or development on the Land.

Tax means a tax, duty (including stamp duty and any other transaction duty), levy, impost, charge, fee (including a registration fee) together with all interest, penalties, fines and costs concerning them.

WAD means a Works Authorisation Deed (or such equivalent deed or agreement) entered into by the Roads Authority and the Developer:

- (i) regarding the design and construction of the Road Works and their Handover to the Roads Authority by the Developer; and
- (ii) consistent with the terms of this deed.

Page 52 of 102 Pages

1.2 Interpretation

In this deed unless the context clearly indicates otherwise:

- (a) a reference to this deed or another document means this deed or that other document and any document which varies, supplements, replaces, assigns or novates this deed or that other document;
- (b) a reference to **legislation** or a **legislative provision** includes any statutory modification, or substitution of that legislation or legislative provision and any subordinate legislation issued under that legislation or legislative provision;
- (c) a reference to a **body** or **authority** which ceases to exist is a reference to either a body or authority that the parties agree to substitute for the named body or authority or, failing agreement, to a body or authority having substantially the same objects as the named body or authority;
- (d) a reference to the **introduction**, a **clause**, **schedule** or **annexure** is a reference to the introduction, a clause, a schedule or an annexure to or of this deed;
- (e) **clause headings, the introduction** and the **table of contents** are inserted for convenience only and do not form part of this deed;
- (f) the schedules form part of this deed;
- (g) a reference to a **person** includes a natural person, corporation, statutory corporation, partnership, the Crown or any other organisation or legal entity;
- (h) a reference to a **natural person** includes their personal representatives, successors and permitted assigns;
- (i) a reference to a corporation includes its successors and permitted assigns;
- (j) a reference to a right or obligation of a party is a reference to a right or obligation of that party under this deed;
- (k) an obligation or warranty on the part of 2 or more persons binds them jointly and severally and an obligation or warranty in favour of 2 or more persons benefits them jointly and severally;
- (I) a requirement to do any thing includes a requirement to cause that thing to be done and a requirement not to do any thing includes a requirement to prevent that thing being done;
- (m) **including** and **includes** are not words of limitation;
- (n) a word that is derived from a defined word has a corresponding meaning;
- (o) **monetary amounts** are expressed in Australian dollars;
- (p) the singular includes the plural and vice-versa;
- (q) words importing one gender include all other genders;
- (r) a reference to a thing includes each part of that thing; and
- (s) neither this deed nor any part of it is to be construed against a party on the basis that the party or its lawyers were responsible for its drafting.

S:4822065_3 BNF

Page 53 of 102 Pages

2. Operation and application of this deed

2.1 Operation

This deed commences on the date that this deed is signed by all the parties.

2.2 Planning agreement under the Act

This deed constitutes a planning agreement within the meaning of section 93F of the Act and the parties agree on the matters set out in Schedule 1.

2.3 Application

This deed applies to:

- (a) the Land; and
- (b) the Development.

3. Application of sections 94, 94A and 94EF of the Act

The application of sections 94, 94A and 94EF of the Act are excluded to the extent stated in Schedule 1.

4. Development Contribution

4.1 Developer to provide Development Contribution

The Developer undertakes to provide to the Minister, or the Minister's nominee, the Development Contribution in accordance with the provisions of **Error! Reference source not found.** to this deed.

4.2 Special Infrastructure Contribution

- (a) This clause applies where:
 - the Minister determines a special infrastructure contribution (SIC) under section
 94EE of the Act for a special contributions area that includes any part of the Land (SIC
 Determination); and
 - (ii) the SIC Determination takes effect on or after the commencement of this deed, but before the Development Contribution has been paid in full.
- (b) If the SIC Amount for a Stage of Development authorised by the relevant Development Consent is less than the Contribution Amount that would otherwise be payable under this deed for that stage, then:
 - (i) the Developer is required to pay only the SIC Amount; and
 - that amount is to be treated as the relevant Contribution Amount for the purposes of clause 5 and clauses 1(b), 2(b) and 4 of Error! Reference source not found..
- (c) If the SIC Amount for a Stage of Development authorised by the relevant Development Consent is more than the Contribution Amount that would otherwise be payable under this deed for that stage, then:
 - (i) the Developer is required to pay only the Contribution Amount; and
 - (ii) that amount is to be treated as the relevant Contribution Amount for the purposes of clause 5 and clauses 1(b), 2(b) and 4 of **Error! Reference source not found.**.

Page 54 of 102 Pages

- (d) Clause 4.2(b) applies only to a Contribution Amount that has not been paid and is not due and payable at the time the SIC Determination takes effect. To avoid doubt, the Minister is not required to refund or reimburse any part of the Development Contribution paid before that time.
- (e) In this clause 4.2, a reference to the SIC Amount for a Stage of Development authorised by the relevant Development Consent is a reference to the amount of the monetary contribution for that stage calculated in accordance with the SIC Determination, being the amount that would have been payable if the application of section 94EF of the Act had not been excluded by this deed and the Development Consent had been granted before the SIC Determination took effect.

4.3 Acknowledgement

The Developer acknowledges and agrees that, subject to section 93E of the Act, the Minister:

- (a) has no obligation to use or expend the Development Contribution for a particular purpose and has no obligation to repay the Development Contribution; and
- (b) in circumstances where the Development Contribution is transferred to any Authority, has not made any representation or warranty that the Development Contribution will or must be used for a particular purpose by that Authority.

4.4 Road Works Contribution

The Developer must provide:

- (c) the Road Works to the Minister in accordance with clause 2 of Schedule 4 to this deed
- (d) If the value of the Road Works calculated in accordance with clause 2.3 of Schedule 4 to this deed (:
 - exceed the Stage 1 Contribution Amount following a Final Reconciliation by the Minister in accordance with clause 2.4 of Schedule 4 to this deed, the Developer will be entitled to an Excess Stage 1 Contributions Credit in accordance with clause 2.4(b) of Schedule 4 to this deed; or
 - (ii) is less than the Contribution Amount for Stages 1 or 2 of the Development (being whichever stage the Developer has elected to apply the Road Works Offset) following a Final Reconciliation by the Minister in accordance with clause 2.4 of Schedule 4 to this deed, the Developer must pay the outstanding balance of the Stage 1 or Stage 2 Contribution Amount (as relevant) to the Minister as a cash contribution in accordance with clause 2.4(d) of Schedule 4 of this deed.

5. Interest

5.1 Interest for late payment

- (a) If the Developer fails to pay a Contribution Amount (as indexed in accordance with Error! Reference source not found.) due to the Minister on the due date for payment, the Developer must also pay to the Minister interest at a rate of 2% above the loan reference rate charged by the Commonwealth Bank of Australia from time to time.
- (b) Interest is payable on the daily balance of amounts due from the due date for payment of those amounts until all outstanding amounts (including interest on those amounts) have been paid to the Minister.

S:4822065_3 BNF

Page 55 of 102 Pages

6. Enforcement

6.1 Developer to provide security

The Developer has agreed to provide security to the Minister for the performance of the Developer's obligations under this deed by providing the Bank Guarantee to the Minister in accordance with the terms and procedures set out in Schedule 5.

7. Registration

7.1 Registration of deed

Within 10 Business Days of receiving a copy of this deed executed by the Minister, the Developer at its own expense must take all practical steps and otherwise do anything to procure:

- (a) the consent of each person, as required by the Registrar-General, who:
 - (i) has an estate or interest in the Land registered under the Real Property Act; or
 - (ii) is seized or possessed of an estate or interest in the Land,

to the registration of this deed on title to the Land and to the terms of this deed; and

- (b) the execution of any documents;
- (c) the production of the relevant certificates of title;
- (d) payment of any duty liability arising from this deed under the *Duties Act 1997* (NSW) and even if duty is not liable to be paid, presentation of this deed for marking at the Office of State Revenue; and
- (e) the lodgement and registration of this deed, by the Registrar-General in the relevant folio of the Register for the Land, or in the General Register of Deeds if this deed relates to land not under the Real Property Act.

7.2 Evidence of registration

The Developer must provide the Minister with a copy of the relevant folio of the Register and a copy of the registered dealing within 10 Business Days of registration of this deed.

7.3 Release and discharge of deed

The Minister agrees to do all things reasonably required by the Developer to release and discharge this deed with respect to any part of the Land upon the Developer satisfying all of its obligations under this deed in respect of that part of the Land.

7.4 Developer's interest in Land

The Developer represents and warrants that it is:

- (a) the owner of the Land; or
- (b) legally and beneficially entitled to become the owner of the Land and will become the legal and beneficial owner of the Land, prior to the date that this deed is required to be registered under clause 7.1 of this deed, and

legally and beneficially entitled to obtain all consents and approvals and to compel any person referred to in or contemplated by clause 7.1(a) to assist, cooperate and to otherwise do all things necessary for the Landowner to comply with its obligations under clause 7.

Page 56 of 102 Pages

8. Dispute Resolution

8.1 Not commence

A party must not commence any court proceedings relating to a dispute unless it complies with this clause 8.

8.2 Written notice of dispute

A party claiming that a dispute has arisen under or in relation to this deed must give written notice to the other party specifying the nature of the dispute.

8.3 Attempt to resolve

On receipt of notice under clause 8.2, the parties must endeavour in good faith to resolve the dispute expeditiously using informal dispute resolution processes such as mediation, expert evaluation or other methods agreed by them.

8.4 Mediation

If the parties do not agree within 21 Business Days of receipt of notice under clause 8.2 (or any further period agreed in writing by them) as to:

- (a) the dispute resolution technique and procedures to be adopted;
- (b) the timetable for all steps in those procedures; or
- (c) the selection and compensation of the independent person required for such technique,

the parties must mediate the dispute in accordance with the Mediation Program. The parties must request the president of the Law Society of NSW or the president's nominee to select the mediator and determine the mediator's remuneration.

8.5 Court proceedings

If the dispute is not resolved within 60 Business Days after notice is given under clause 8.2 then any party which has complied with the provisions of this clause 8 may in writing terminate any dispute resolution process undertaken under this clause and may then commence court proceedings in relation to the dispute.

8.6 Not use information

The parties acknowledge the purpose of any exchange of information or documents or the making of any offer of settlement under this clause 8 is to attempt to settle the dispute. No party may use any information or documents obtained through any dispute resolution process undertaken under this clause 8 for any purpose other than in an attempt to settle the dispute.

8.7 No prejudice

This clause 8 does not prejudice the right of a party to institute court proceedings for urgent injunctive or declaratory relief in relation to any matter arising out of or relating to this deed.

9. GST

9.1 Definitions

Words used in this clause that are defined in the GST Legislation have the meaning given in that legislation.

Page 57 of 102 Pages

9.2 Intention of the parties

The parties intend that:

- (a) Divisions 81 and 82 of the GST Legislation apply to the supplies made under and in respect of this deed; and
- (b) no additional amounts will be payable on account of GST and no tax invoices will be exchanged between the parties.

9.3 Reimbursement

Any payment or reimbursement required to be made under this deed that is calculated by reference to a cost, expense, or other amount paid or incurred must be limited to the total cost, expense or amount less the amount of any input tax credit to which any entity is entitled for the acquisition to which the cost, expense or amount relates.

9.4 Consideration GST exclusive

Unless otherwise expressly stated, all prices or other sums payable or consideration to be provided under this deed are GST Exclusive. Any consideration that is specified to be inclusive of GST must not be taken into account in calculating the GST payable in relation to a supply for the purposes of this clause 8.4.

9.5 Additional Amounts for GST

To the extent an amount of GST is payable on a supply made by a party under or in connection with this deed (the **GST Amount**), the Recipient must pay to the Supplier the GST Amount. However, where a GST Amount is payable by the Minister as Recipient of the supply, the Developer must ensure that:

- (a) the Developer makes payment of the GST Amount on behalf of the Minister, including any gross up that may be required; and
- (b) the Developer provides a Tax Invoice to the Minister.

9.6 Non monetary consideration

Clause 9.5 applies to non-monetary consideration.

9.7 Assumptions

The Developer acknowledges and agrees that in calculating any amounts payable under clause 9.5 the Developer must assume the Minister is not entitled to any input tax credit.

9.8 No merger

This clause does not merge on completion or termination of this deed.

10. Assignment and transfer

10.1 Right to assign or novate

- (a) Prior to a proposed assignment or novation of its rights or obligations under this deed, the party seeking to assign its rights or obligations (Assigning Party) must seek the consent of the Minister and:
 - (i) satisfy the Minister (acting reasonably) that the person to whom the Assigning Party's rights or obligations are to be assigned or novated (**Incoming Party**) has

Page 58 of 102 Pages

sufficient assets, resources and expertise required in order to perform the Assigning Party's obligations under this deed insofar as those obligations have been novated to the Incoming Party;

- procure the execution of an agreement by the Incoming Party with the Minister on terms satisfactory to the Minister (acting reasonably) under which the Incoming Party agrees to comply with the terms and conditions of this deed as though the Incoming Party was the Assigning Party; and
- (iii) satisfy the Minister, acting reasonably, that it is not in material breach of its obligations under this deed.
- (b) The Assigning Party must pay the Minister's reasonable legal costs and expenses incurred under this clause 10.1.

10.2 Right to transfer Land

- (a) The Landowner must not sell or transfer to another person (**Transferee**) the whole or part of any part of the Land on which this deed remains registered under section 93H of the Act.
- (b) Notwithstanding clause 10.2(a) the Landowner may sell or transfer the whole or any part of the Land to a Transferee if prior to the proposed sale or transfer the Landowner:
 - satisfies the Minister, acting reasonably, that the proposed Transferee has sufficient assets, resources and expertise required in order to perform any of the remaining obligations of the Developer under this deed or satisfies the Minister, acting reasonably, that the Landowner will continue to be bound by the terms of this deed after the transfer has been effected;
 - (ii) procures the execution of an agreement by the Transferee with the Minister on terms satisfactory to the Minister, acting reasonably, under which the Transferee agrees to comply with the terms and conditions of this deed as though the Transferee was the Landowner; and
 - (iii) satisfies the Minister, acting reasonably, that it is not in material breach of its obligations under this deed.
- (c) The Landowner must pay the Minister's reasonable legal costs and expenses incurred under this clause 10.2.

11. Capacity

11.1 General warranties

Each party warrants to each other party that:

- (a) this deed creates legal, valid and binding obligations, enforceable against the relevant party in accordance with its terms; and
- (b) unless otherwise stated, it has not entered into this deed in the capacity of trustee of any trust.

11.2 Power of attorney

If an attorney executes this deed on behalf of any party, the attorney declares that it has no notice of the revocation of that power of attorney.

Page 59 of 102 Pages

12. Reporting requirement

- (a) By 1 September each year or as otherwise agreed with the Secretary, the Developer must deliver to the Secretary a report for the period 1 July to 30 June of the preceding financial year which must include the following matters, as applicable:
 - details of all Development Consents, Construction Certificates, Complying Development Certificates and Subdivision Certificates issued in relation to the Development;
 - a description of the status of the Development including a plan that identifies what parts of the Development have been completed, are under construction and are to be constructed;
 - (iii) a forecast in relation to the anticipated progression and completion of the Development;
 - (iv) a compliance schedule showing the details of all Development Contributions provided under this deed as at the date of the report and indicating any noncompliance with this deed and the reason for the non-compliance;
 - details of details of all Development Consents, Construction Certificates, Complying Development Certificates and Subdivision Certificates issued in relation to the Brickworks Operations; and
 - (vi) when the Developer expects to lodge the next Planning Application.
- (b) Upon the Secretary's request, the Developer must deliver to the Secretary all documents and other information which, in the reasonable opinion of the Secretary are necessary for the Secretary to assess the status of the Development and the Developer's compliance with this deed.

13. General Provisions

13.1 Entire deed

This deed constitutes the entire agreement between the parties regarding the matters set out in it and supersedes any prior representations, understandings or arrangements made between the parties, whether orally or in writing.

13.2 Variation

This deed must not be varied except by a later written document executed by all parties.

13.3 Waiver

A right created by this deed cannot be waived except in writing signed by the party entitled to that right. Delay by a party in exercising a right does not constitute a waiver of that right, nor will a waiver (either wholly or in part) by a party of a right operate as a subsequent waiver of the same right or of any other right of that party.

13.4 Further assurances

Each party must promptly execute all documents and do every thing necessary or desirable to give full effect to the arrangements contained in this deed.

Page 60 of 102 Pages

13.5 Time for doing acts

- (a) If:
 - (i) the time for doing any act or thing required to be done; or
 - (ii) a notice period specified in this deed,

expires on a day other than a Business Day, the time for doing that act or thing or the expiration of that notice period is extended until the following Business Day.

(b) If any act or thing required to be done is done after 5 pm on the specified day, it is taken to have been done on the following Business Day.

13.6 Governing law and jurisdiction

- (a) The laws applicable in New South Wales govern this deed.
- (b) The parties submit to the non-exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of New South Wales and any courts competent to hear appeals from those courts.

13.7 Severance

If any clause or part of any clause is in any way unenforceable, invalid or illegal, it is to be read down so as to be enforceable, valid and legal. If this is not possible, the clause (or where possible, the offending part) is to be severed from this deed without affecting the enforceability, validity or legality of the remaining clauses (or parts of those clauses) which will continue in full force and effect.

13.8 Preservation of existing rights

The expiration or termination of this deed does not affect any right that has accrued to a party before the expiration or termination date.

13.9 No merger

Any right or obligation of any party that is expressed to operate or have effect on or after the completion, expiration or termination of this deed for any reason, does not merge on the occurrence of that event but remains in full force and effect.

13.10 Counterparts

This deed may be executed in any number of counterparts. All counterparts taken together constitute one instrument.

13.11 Relationship of parties

Unless otherwise stated:

- (a) nothing in this deed creates a joint venture, partnership, or the relationship of principal and agent, or employee and employer between the parties; and
- (b) no party has the authority to bind any other party by any representation, declaration or admission, or to make any contract or commitment on behalf of any other party or to pledge any other party's credit.

13.12 Good faith

Each party must act in good faith towards all other parties and use its best endeavours to comply with the spirit and intention of this deed.

S:4822065_3 BNF

Page 61 of 102 Pages

13.13 No fetter

Nothing in this deed shall be construed as requiring the Minister to do anything that would cause the Minister to breach any of the Minister's obligations at law and without limitation, nothing in this deed shall be construed as limiting or fettering in any way the discretion of the Minister in exercising any of the Minister's statutory functions, powers, authorities or duties.

13.14 Explanatory note

The Explanatory Note must not be used to assist in construing this deed.

13.15 Expenses and stamp duty

- (a) The Developer must pay its own and the Minister's reasonable legal costs and disbursements in connection with the negotiation, preparation, execution and carrying into effect of this deed.
- (b) The Developer must pay for all costs and expenses associated with the giving of public notice of this deed and the Explanatory Note in accordance with the Regulation.
- (c) The Developer must pay all Taxes assessed on or in respect of this deed and any instrument or transaction required or contemplated by or necessary to give effect to this deed (including stamp duty and registration fees, if applicable).
- (d) The Developer must provide the Minister with bank cheques, or an alternative method of payment if agreed with the Minister, in respect of the Minister's costs pursuant to clauses 13.15(a) and (b):
 - (i) where the Minister has provided the Developer with written notice of the sum of such costs prior to execution, on the date of execution of this deed; or
 - (ii) where the Minister has not provided the Developer with prior written notice of the sum of such costs prior to execution, within 30 Business Days of demand by the Minister for payment.

13.16 Notices

- (a) Any notice, demand, consent, approval, request or other communication (**Notice**) to be given under this deed must be in writing and must be given to the recipient at its Address for Service by being:
 - (i) hand delivered; or
 - (ii) sent by facsimile transmission; or
 - (iii) sent by prepaid ordinary mail within Australia; or
 - (iv) in the case of a Notice to be given by the Minister or Secretary, sent by email.
- (b) A Notice is given if:
 - (i) hand delivered, on the date of delivery but if delivery occurs after 5pm New South Wales time or a day that is not a Business Day, is taken to be given on the next Business Day;
 - (ii) sent by facsimile and the sending party's facsimile machine reports that the facsimile has been successfully transmitted;
 - (A) before 5 pm on a Business Day, on that day;

Page 62 of 102 Pages

- (B) after 5 pm on a Business Day, on the next Business Day after it is sent; or
- (C) on a day that is not a Business Day, on the next Business Day after it is sent; or
- (iii) sent by prepaid ordinary mail within Australia, on the date that is 2 Business Days after the date of posting.

Page 63 of 102 Pages

Table 1 - Requirements under section 93F of the Act (clause 2.2)

The parties acknowledge and agree that the table set out below provides for certain terms, conditions and procedures for the purpose of the deed complying with the Act.

Requirement under the Act	This deed		
Planning instrument and/or development application (section 93F(2))			
The Developer has:			
 (a) sought a change to an environmental planning instrument. 	(a) No		
(b) made, or proposes to make, a Development Application.	(b) Yes		
(c) entered into an agreement with, or is otherwise associated with, a person, to whom paragraph (a) or (b) applies.	(c) No		
Description of land to which this deed applies – (section 93F(3)(a))	See Schedule 3		
Description of development to which this deed applies – (section 93F(3)(b))	See definition of Development in clause 1.1		
Description of change to the environmental planning instrument to which this deed applies - (section 93F(3)(b))	N/A		
The scope, timing and manner of delivery of contribution required by this deed – (section 93F(3)(c))	See Error! Reference source not found.		
Applicability of sections 94 and 94A of the Act – (section 93F(3)(d))	The application of sections 94 and 94A of the Act is not excluded in respect of the Development.		
Applicability of section 94EF of the Act – (section 93F(3)(d))	The application of section 94EF of the Act is excluded in respect of the Development.		
Consideration of benefits under this deed if section 94 applies – (section 93F(5))	The Development Contributions to be provided by the Developer under the deed must not be taken into consideration in determining a contribution under section 94.		
Mechanism for Dispute Resolution – (section 93F(3)(f))	See clause 8		
Enforcement of this deed – (section 93F(3)(g))	See clause 6		
No obligation to grant consent or exercise functions – (section 93F(10))	See clause 13.13		

Page 64 of 102 Pages

Table 2 – Other matters

Requirement under the Act	This deed
Registration of the Planning Agreement – (section 93H of the Act)	Yes (see clause 7)
Whether the Planning Agreement specifies that certain requirements of the agreement must be complied with before a construction certificate is issued – (clause 25E(2)(g) of the Regulation)	Yes (see clause 3(a) of Error! Reference source not found.)
Whether the Planning Agreement specifies that certain requirements of the agreement must be complied with before an occupation certificate is issued – (clause 25E(2)(g) of the Regulation)	No
Whether the Planning Agreement specifies that certain requirements of the agreement must be complied with before a subdivision certificate is issued – (clause 25E(2)(g) of the Regulation)	Yes (see clause 3(a) of Error! Reference source not found.)

Page 65 of 102 Pages

Address for Service (clause 1.1)

Minister	
----------	--

Contact:	The Secretary
Address:	Department of Planning and Environment 23-33 Bridge Street Sydney NSW 2000
Facsimile No:	(02) 9228 6455
Developer	
Contact:	Wayne Pasalich
Address:	CSR Limited Triniti 3, 39 Delhi Road North Ryde NSW 2113

Facsimile No: N/A

S:4822065_3 BNF

Page 66 of 102 Pages

Land (clause 1.1)

Lot	Deposited Plan
Part Lot 1	DP106143
Part Lot 1 is the area hatched black on the plan annexed and marked "A" to this Deed.	

Page 67 of 102 Pages

Development Contributions (clause 4)

1. Development Contributions

(a) The Developer undertakes to provide the Development Contribution in the manner set out in the table below:

Development Contribution (subject to clause 4)	Timing
Road Works The Developer must carry out and complete the Road Works in clauses 2.1 and 2.2 of Schedule 4.	In accordance with the process set out in clause 2 of this Schedule 4.
Monetary Contribution The Developer must pay a cash contribution to the Minister in the amount of \$182,898 per hectare of NDA of the Development towards the provision of regional transport infrastructure and services (subject to and adjusted in accordance with clause 2.4 of Schedule 4) in accordance with clause 3.1 of this Schedule 4.	Pursuant to clause 5 of this Schedule 4.

- (b) The parties agree that the Developer may apply any Road Works Offset in partial or full satisfaction of its obligation to pay a Contribution Amount for Stage 1 or Stage 2 of the Development as set out in clause 4.4 of this Schedule 4.
- (c) The Developer undertakes and agrees to carry out Development in accordance with the Stage of Development Plan.

2. Road Works

2.1 Conditions to Commencement of Road Works

Prior to commencement of the Road Works, the Developer must:

- (a) provide evidence to the Minister that it has obtained Development Consent for the Road Works;
- (b) enter into a WAD with the Road Authority, on such terms and conditions as are:
 - (i) consistent with the requirements of this deed, including this Schedule 4; and
 - (ii) acceptable to the Road Authority and the Minister,
- (c) provide a copy to the Minister of the executed WAD to carry out the Road Works; and

Page 68 of 102 Pages

(d) provide evidence to the Minister of the security provided for the Road Works under the WAD having regard to the requirements of clause 2 of Schedule 5 of this deed.

2.2 Timing of Road Works

- (a) The Developer must complete the Road Works in accordance with the WAD and by no later than the issue of a Construction Certificate, Complying Development Certificate or Subdivision Certificate for any part of the Development within Stage 2 of the Development.
- (b) Notwithstanding clause 2.2(a) the Developer will not be required to complete the Road Works prior to the issue of any Construction Certificate or Complying Development Certificate for Subdivision Works in any part of the Development.

2.3 Road Works Offset

- (a) Unless otherwise agreed with the Minister, within 3 months of the Road Works achieving Practical Completion, the Developer must provide to the Minister documentation that evidences the Actual Cost of the Road Works (Offset Documentation). The Offset Documentation is to include an independent certification of the Actual Cost from an independent quantity surveyor engaged by the Developer who is a member of the Australian Institute of Quantity Surveyors or an independent chartered professional engineer engaged by the Developer who is a member of Engineers Australia.
- (b) Within 3 months of the Offset Documentation being provided to the Minister, the Minister, acting reasonably, is to notify the Developer of the amount of the approved cost of the Road Works (Road Works Offset) under this deed having regard to the Estimated Cost Cap and Actual Cost of the Road Works.
- (c) The parties agree that, for the purpose of clause 2.3(b) of this Schedule 4, where:
 - the Actual Cost is greater than the Estimated Cost Cap, the Minister will give a Road Works Offset for the value of the Estimated Cost Cap (or any revised figure approved under clause 2.3(e)); and
 - (ii) the Actual Cost is lower than the Estimated Cost Cap, the Minister will give a Road Works Offset for the value of the Actual Cost.
- (d) The Developer acknowledges and agrees that it will not be entitled to any Road Works Offset in circumstances where the Roads Authority has exercised its step in rights under the WAD or the Developer otherwise fails to provide the Road Works pursuant to the WAD.
- (e) If the cost of the Road Works exceeds the Estimated Cost Cap, the Parties agree that within three months of the Road Works achieving Practical Completion, the Developer may submit to the Minister in writing:
 - (i) the reasons for the exceedance; and
 - (ii) a recommendation for a revised Estimated Cost Cap.
- (f) The Minister may or may not, at the Minister's absolute discretion, agree in writing to an increase in the Estimated Cost Cap as a consequence of receiving written notification under clause 2.3(e).
- (g) If the Minister elects to agree to an increase under clause 2.3(e), despite anything else in this Deed, the Estimated Cost Cap is set at the increased monetary amount so determined in writing by the Minister.
- 2.4 Road Works Offset Credit

Page 69 of 102 Pages

- (a) This clause 2.4(a) applies where the Developer seeks to apply the Road Works Offset in full or partial satisfaction of its obligation to pay the Development Contribution relating to Stage 1 of the Development in accordance with clause 3.1 of this Schedule (Stage 1 Contribution Amount).
 - (i) The Parties agree that the Developer will issue a written notice to the Minister of the Developer's intention to apply any Road Works Offset to the Stage 1 Contribution Amount (Offset Notice) and on receipt of the Offset Notice, the Minister will undertake a final reconciliation to calculate the difference between the Stage 1 Contribution Amount due and the Offset Amount (Stage 1 Final Reconciliation).
 - (ii) Where the Stage 1 Final Reconciliation indicates that the value of the Offset Amount exceeds the Stage 1 Contribution Amount, then the Developer will be entitled to a credit for the amount that the value of the Offset Amount exceeds the Stage 1 Contribution Amount (Excess Stage 1 Contributions Credit) in accordance with clause 2.4(a)(iii) of this Schedule 4.
 - (iii) Any Excess Stage 1 Contributions Credit which has been generated under this deed shall be used to satisfy (in whole or in part) the Developer's obligation to pay the Development Contribution relating to Stage 2 of the Development in accordance with clause 1 and clause 3.1 of this Schedule 4.
 - (iv) Where the Final Reconciliation indicates that the value of the Offset Amount is less than the Stage 1 Contribution Amount, then the Developer must pay the balance as a cash contribution to the Minister within 10 Business Days of receiving a notice from the Minister notifying the Developer of the outstanding Stage 1 Contribution Amount.
- (b) This clause 2.4(b) applies where the Developer:
 - (i) has not applied any Road Works Offset in relation to Stage 1 Contribution Amount;
 - (ii) is not in breach of its obligations to pay the Stage 1 Contribution Amount; and
 - seeks to apply to the Road Works Offset in full or partial satisfaction of its obligation to provide a monetary contribution for Stage 2 of the Development in accordance with clause 3.1 (Stage 2 Contribution Amount)
 - (A) The Parties agree that the Developer will issue a written notice to the Minister of the Developer's intention to apply any Road Works Offset to the Stage 2 Contribution (Offset Notice) and on receipt of Offset Notice, the Minister will undertake a final reconciliation to calculate the difference between the Stage 2 Contribution Amount due and the Offset Amount (Stage 2 Final Reconciliation).
 - (B) Where the Stage 2 Final Reconciliation indicates that the value of the Offset Amount is less than the Stage 2 Contribution Amount, then the Developer must pay the balance as a cash contribution to the Minister within 10 Business Days of receiving a notice from the Minister notifying the Developer of the outstanding Stage 2 Contribution Amount.

Page 70 of 102 Pages

3. Monetary Contributions

3.1 Payment of Monetary Contributions

- (a) For the purposes of this Schedule, Net Developable Area, means the area of land, in hectares, of a part of the Land as defined and determined in accordance with the Net Developable Area Plan.
- (b) The Developer undertakes to provide the following Development Contribution to the Minister in the manner set out in the table below:

Stage of Development	Development Contribution	Value	Timing
1	Contribution Amount - Cash contribution towards provision of regional transport infrastructure and services	\$914,490 (being the Net Developable Area of Stage 1 (5.0 ha) x \$182,898) subject to clauses 2.4 and 4 of Schedule 4.	Pursuant to clause 5 of this Schedule 4.
2	Contribution Amount - Cash contribution towards provision of regional transport infrastructure and services	\$3,059,883.54 (being the Net Developable Area of Stage 2 (16.73ha) x \$182,898) subject to clauses 2.4 and 4 of Schedule 4.	Pursuant to clause 5 of this Schedule 4
3	Contribution Amount – Cash contribution towards provision of regional transport infrastructure and services	\$680,380.56 (being the Net Developable Area of Stage 3 (3.72ha) x \$182,898) subject to clause 4 of Schedule 4.	Pursuant to clause 5 of this Schedule 4

(c) The Minister and Developer acknowledge and agree that the sum of the Contribution Amounts form the Development Contribution under this deed in addition to the carrying out of the Road Works.

4. Calculation of the indexed value of a Contribution Amount

(a) On each CPI Adjustment Date, the value of the Contribution Amount for a Stage of Development in the table in clause 3.1(b) is to be adjusted by multiplying that amount payable by an amount equal to the Current CPI divided by the Base CPI.

S:4822065_3 BNF

Page 71 of 102 Pages

5. Payment of Contribution Amounts

- (a) The Developer must pay to the Minister or the Minister's nominee the Contribution Amount in respect of a Stage of Development:
 - (i) before any Subdivision Certificate or Construction Certificate is issued for any part of the Development in that Stage of Development;
 - (ii) if any part of the Development is to be carried out without the need for a Subdivision Certificate or a Construction Certificate, then both;
 - (A) before that Development is commenced in that Stage of Development; and
 - (B) before any application for a Complying Development Certificate is made in respect of that Development in that Stage of Development;

whichever is earlier.

- (b) Notwithstanding clause 5(a) the Developer will not be required to pay any Contribution Amount in respect of a Stage of Development prior to the issue of:
 - (i) any Subdivision Certificate for Super Lot Subdivision; or
 - (ii) any Construction Certificate or Complying Development Certificate for Subdivision Works.
- (c) Notwithstanding clause 5(a) the Developer will not be required to pay any Contribution Amount in respect of a Stage of Development prior to the issue of any Construction Certificate or Complying Development Certificate or for Exempt Development for the Brickworks Operations.
- (d) The parties agree that the requirement to make a payment under this clause is a restriction on the issue of the relevant Subdivision Certificate within the meaning of section 109J(1)(c1) of the Act.
- (e) The parties agree that the requirement to make a payment under this clause is a restriction on the issue of the relevant Construction Certificate within the meaning of section 109F(1) of the Act and clause 146A of the Regulation.

Page 72 of 102 Pages

Security Terms (clause 5.1)

1. Security for Development Contribution

- (a) In order to secure the payment or performance of the Development Contribution the Developer has agreed to provide security in the form of Bank Guarantees.
- (b) The Bank Guarantee must:
 - (i) name the "Minister for Planning" and the "Department of Planning and Environment ABN 38 755 709 681" as the relevant beneficiaries; and
 - (ii) not have an expiry date.

2. Bank Guarantee for Road Works

- (a) In order to secure the carrying out of the Road Works in accordance with Schedule 4 of this deed and the WAD the Developer has agreed to provide security in accordance with this Schedule 5.
- (b) If, upon execution of this deed, the Developer has:
 - (i) entered into a WAD with the Roads Authority in relation to the Road Works;
 - provided security to the Roads Authority for the Estimated Cost Cap of the Road Works under the WAD or such other figure to the satisfaction of the Roads Authority; and
 - satisfied the Minister, in the Minister's absolute discretion, as to the adequacy of the security provided to the Roads Authority for the Road Works including providing all information reasonably required by the Minister regarding the security provided under the WAD,

the Minister will accept the security provided under the WAD as security for the performance of the Developer's obligation under Schedule 4 of this deed to carry out the Road Works, and will provide written notification to the Developer of the Minister's position under this clause 2(a) within 20 Business Days of receiving all required information from the Developer regarding the security provided under the WAD.

- (c) If, upon execution of this deed, the Developer has not entered into a WAD with the Roads Authority in relation to the Road Works, the Developer must provide a Bank Guarantee to the Minister for the Estimated Cost Cap of the Road Works (the Road Works Bank Guarantee), to secure its obligation to carry out the Road Works.
- (d) If, following execution of this deed, the Developer;
 - (i) enters into a WAD with the Roads Authority in relation to the Road Works in accordance with this deed;
 - (ii) provides security to the Roads Authority for the Estimated Cost Cap of the Road Works under the WAD; and
 - satisfies the Minister, in the Minister's absolute discretion, as to the adequacy of the security provided to the Roads Authority for the Road Works including providing all information reasonably required by the Minister regarding the security provided under the WAD,

S:4822065_3 BNF

Page 73 of 102 Pages

the Minister will accept the security provided under the WAD as securing the performance of the Developer's obligation under Schedule 4 of this deed to carry out the Road Works, and will provide written notification to the Developer of the Minister's position under this clause 2(c) within 20 Business Days of receiving all required information from the Developer regarding the security provided under the WAD.

- (e) Where clause 2(d) of this Schedule 5 applies, the Minister will return the Road Works Bank Guarantee provided by the Developer under clause 2(b) of this Schedule 5 within 20 Business Days of the Minister notifying the Developer of the Minister's acceptance of the security provided under the WAD.
- (f) If the Developer does not satisfy the Minister as to the adequacy of the security provided for the Roads Works under the WAD in accordance with clause 2(b) or clause 2(c) of this Schedule 5, then:
 - the Developer will be required to provide a Bank Guarantee for the difference between the amount of the security provided under the WAD and the Estimated Cost Cap of the Road Works (the **Top Up Road Works Bank Guarantee**);
 - (ii) upon receipt of the Top Up Road Works Bank Guarantee required by the Minister under clause 2(f)(i) of this Schedule 5, the Minister will accept that Top Up Road Works Bank Guarantee and the security provided under the WAD as securing the performance of the Developer's obligation under Schedule 4 of this deed to carry out the Road Works; and
 - (iii) the Minister will return the Road Works Bank Guarantee provided under clause 2(c) of this Schedule 5 to the Developer within 10 Business Days of receiving the Bank Guarantee under clause 2(f)(i) of this Schedule 5.

3. Claims under a Bank Guarantee for Road Works

- (a) The Minister may call upon the Road Works Bank Guarantee or Top Up Road Works Bank Guarantee provided in accordance with clause 2(c) and 2(f) of this Schedule 5 where the Developer has failed to complete the Road Works in accordance with Schedule 4 of this deed and retain and apply such monies towards:
 - (i) achieving performance of the Road Works; and
 - (ii) the Costs incurred by the Minister in rectifying any default by the Developer under this deed.
- (b) Prior to calling upon a Bank Guarantee(s) the Minister must give the Developer not less than 10 Business Days written notice.
- (c) If:
 - (i) the Minister calls upon a Bank Guarantee(s); and
 - (ii) applies all or part of such monies towards the Costs incurred by the Minister in rectifying any default by the Developer under this deed; and
 - (iii) has notified the Developer of the call upon the Bank Guarantee(s) in accordance with clause 3(b) of this Schedule 5,

then the Minister may request that the Developer provide an additional Guarantee(s) to secure performance of the Developer's obligations under this Deed in accordance with clause 4 of this Schedule 5.

Page 74 of 102 Pages
4. Right to Call for Additional Security

- (a) Notwithstanding clause 2 of this Schedule 5, if the Minister, acting reasonably, at any time considers that an additional Bank Guarantee(s) is required to secure the Developer's obligations under this deed, the Developer must provide such additional Bank Guarantee(s) for the amount specified by the Minister within 10 Business Days of a written request by the Minister and clauses 3 and 5 of this Schedule 5 apply.
- (b) Without limiting the operation of clause 4(a) of this Schedule 5, the Minister may require the Developer to provide a Bank Guarantee for an amount determined by the Minister if it becomes apparent to the Minister that the value of the Development Contribution to be provided under this deed will be less than the Contribution Amount.

5. Release of Road Works Bank Guarantee(s)

lf:

- (a) the Developer has satisfied all of its obligations under this deed secured by a Road Works Bank Guarantee or Top Up Road Works Bank Guarantee; and
- (b) the whole of the monies secured by the Road Works Bank Guarantee or Top Up Road Works Bank Guarantee have not been expended and the monies accounted for in accordance with clause 3 of this Schedule 5,

then the Minister will promptly return the Road Works Bank Guarantee or Top Up Road Works Bank Guarantee (less any costs, charges, duties and taxes payable), or the remainder of the monies secured by the Bank Guarantee(s) (as the case may be), to the Developer.

6. Bank Guarantee for Stage of Development

- (a) At the time the Developer signs this deed, the Developer undertakes to provide a Bank Guarantee to the Minister having a face value amount of \$20,000 (Base Bank Guarantee) in order to secure the payment of the Development Contribution for Stages 2 and 3.
- (b) Prior to applying for any Construction Certificate or Complying Development Certificate for Subdivision Works in respect of Stages 2 and/or 3 of Development, the Developer undertakes to provide a Bank Guarantee to the Minister for a face value equivalent to the Contribution Amount for that Stage of Development in order to secure the payment of the Development Contribution as it relates to that Stage of Development (Stage of Development Bank Guarantee).
- (c) From the date of execution of this Deed until the date the Developer pays the Contribution Amount for a Stage of Development the Minister will be entitled to retain the Bank Guarantee for a Stage of Development subject to clause 4 below.
- (d) From the date of execution of this deed until the date that the Developer has provided the Development Contribution for Stages 2 and 3 in full, the Minister will be entitled to retain the Base Bank Guarantee subject to clause 4 below.

7. Claims under Stage of Development Bank Guarantees

- (a) The Minister may:
 - (i) call upon the Stage of Development Bank Guarantee or the Base Bank Guarantee where the Developer has failed to pay a Contribution Amount for Stages 2 and/or 3 of Development on or after the date for payment under this deed; and

S:4822065_3 BNF

Page 75 of 102 Pages

- (ii) retain and apply such monies towards the Contribution Amount and any costs and expenses incurred by the Minister in rectifying any default by the Developer under this deed.
- (b) Prior to calling upon the Stage of Development Bank Guarantee or Base Bank Guarantee the Minister must give the Developer not less than 10 Business Days written notice of his or her intention to call on the Stage of Development Bank Guarantee or Base Bank Guarantee.
- (c) If:
 - (i) the Minister calls upon the Base Bank Guarantee; and
 - (ii) applies all or part of such monies towards the Contribution Amount in respect of Stages 2 and/or 3 of Development and any costs and expenses incurred by the Minister in rectifying any default by the Developer under this deed; and
 - (iii) has notified the Developer of the call upon the Base Bank Guarantee in accordance with clause 2(b) of this Schedule 5,

then the Developer must provide to the Minister a replacement Base Bank Guarantee to ensure that at all times until the date that the Base Bank Guarantee is released in accordance with clause 8 of this Schedule, the Minister is in possession of a Base Bank Guarantee for a face value equivalent to \$20,000.

8. Release of Bank Guarantees

- (a) If:
 - the Developer paid the Contribution Amount for Stages 2 and 3 Development and has satisfied all of its obligations under this deed secured by the Bank Guarantee for that Stage of Development; and
 - the whole of the monies secured by the Stage of Development Bank Guarantee has not been expended and the monies accounted for in accordance with clause 3 of this Schedule 5,

then the Minister will promptly return the Stage of Development Bank Guarantee (less any costs, charges, duties and taxes payable), or the remainder of the monies secured by the Stage of Development Bank Guarantee (as the case may be), to the Developer.

- (b) If:
 - the Developer paid the Development Contribution and has satisfied all of its
 obligations under this deed secured by the Base Bank Guarantee; and
 - the whole of the monies secured by the Base Bank Guarantee has not been expended and the monies accounted for in accordance with clause 2 of this Schedule 5,

then the Minister will promptly return the Base Bank Guarantee (less any costs, charges, duties and taxes payable), or the remainder of the monies secured by the Base Bank Guarantee (as the case may be), to the Developer.

Page 76 of 102 Pages

Page 31 of 35

Execution page	
Executed as a deed	
Signed , sealed and delivered for and on behalf of the Minister for Planning, in the presence of:	
Signature of witness Name of witness in full	Signature of the Minister for Planning or Delegate
	Name of the Minister for Planning or delegate
Address of witness	
Executed for and on behalf of CSR Building Products Limited (ACN 008 631 356) by its duly appointed attorney(s) registered book 4612 no 571 in the presence of:	
Signature of witness	Signature of attorney
Name of witness in full	Name of attorney By executing this deed the attorney states that the attorney has received no notice of revocation of the power of attorney
Address of witness	Signature of attorney
	Name of attorney By executing this deed the attorney states that the attorney has received no notice of revocation of the power of attorney

Page 77 of 102 Pages



Page 78 of 102 Pages



S:4822065_3 BNF

Page 79 of 102 Pages

Page 34 of 35

ANNEXURE C

Page 80 of 102 Pages



FOR ROAD ACT APPROVAL



SECTION 911 RETAINING WALL DETAILS

DRAWING LIST © DRAWING TITLE ENERAL BOOTED SEET
20 COVEN STEEL 21 GENERAL NOTES & LEGEND 22 GENERAL ARRANGEMENT PLAN
DE FUTURE WORKS PLAN
EDIMENT & EROSION CONTROL 11 SEDIMENT & EROSION CONTROL PLAN 10 SEDIMENT & FROSION CONTROL NOTES & DETAILS
ITE REGRADING 11 STFE REGRADING PLAN
NGINEERING PLAN
01 ENGINEERING PLAN
OAD CROSS SECTIONS
11 ACCESS ROAD CROSS SECTIONS SHEET 01 OF 02
22 ACCESS ROAD CROSS SECTIONS SHEET 02 OF 02
OAD LONGITUDINAL SECTIONS
UT ACCESS ROAD LONG! CUINAL SECTION TERSECTION PLANS
01 ACCESS ROAD ALIGNMENT PLAN 01 OF 02
22 ACCESS ROAD ALIGNMENT PLAN 02 OF 02
RAFFIC MANA GEMENT
RAINAGE
DI CATCHAENT RLAN
11 DRAINAGE LONGITUDINAL SECTIONS LINE No 01-03
21 DRAINAGE CALOULATIONS
TRUCTURAL
01 TYPICAL STRUCTURAL PIT DETAILS
IZ CULVER'I BASE SLAB LEI ALS
10 RETAINING WALL PLAN AND LONGTUDINAL



Panges 81 of 102 Page

GENERAL NOTES			LEGEND		Î
GENERAL	ROADWORKS	STORAWATED DUDELINE	PROPOSED Edit	STIMS FUT	360
G1 ALL WORK TO BE CARRIED OUT IN ACCORDANCE WITH FAIRFELD COUNCIL SENSIBLEENIS DESIGN AND ENGINEERING CONSTRUCTION SPECIFICATIONS AND TO THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE CERTIFICING ACTIVACITY	R1 SUBSAUCES AND SUB BASES ARE TO BE CONFIDENCE WITH CONNELIS CONSTRUCTION SECONDATION				
G2 INSPECTIONS BY CERTIFYING AUTHORITY ARE REQUIRED AT THE FOLLOWING STACES AND THE WORKS APPROVED PRICAT TO CONTINUANCE OF ANY FOUNDER WORK	R2 SUBSOL DRAINS TO BE PROVIDED ON BOTH SIDES OF ROADS (EXCEPT WAGRE THERE IS STORIMATER INPRANAMENT	DRAINAGE LINE No 3			1
(A) FOLLOWING INSTALLATION OF EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL STRUCTURESMEASURES	83 (55X 50 H) D. GULVANGED STEEL KERB OUTETS TO BE PLACED IN ALL KERB TYPES ON LOW SIDE OF LOTS	DRAINAGE PIT No 1D	all '		
(B) PRIOR TO BACKFILLING PIPELINES, SUBSOIL DRAINS AND DAMS	PROVIDE SUITABLE ADAPTOR TO ALLON CONCECTION OF SUI MACANETER STORMMATER PIPE R4 I IPI ESS EPRAMPILIA TOR CONSEMISE DEF TO BE DOMINENTIA NU VERE RETAINA ANAMERER PIPE	CONCRETE HEADWALL		Ŧ	Ŧ
(5) PRIOR TO CASTING OF PITS AND OTHER CONCRETE STRUCTURES, INCLUDING HERB AND GUTTERBUT FOLLOWING PLACEMENT OF FOOTINGS, FORMMORK, AND REINFORCEMENT		SUBSOIL DRAIN			
(b) PRIOR TO FLACEMENT OF SUB BASE AND ALL SUBSEQUENT PAVENENT LAVERS, A PROOF ROLLER TEST OF EACH PAVENENT LAYER IS REQUIRED.	R5 SERVICE CONDUTS TO BE PLACED AS DIRECTED BY ALL PUBLIC UTLITY AUTHORITIES INCLUDING INTEGRAL ENERGY, FEISTRA AND SYDREY MAILER	150mm KERB AND GUTTER	K&G EXIS	EXIST K&G FUT I	FUT K&G
EI) FORMMOHIS PRICH TO POURING CONCRETE IN PARKING AREA FOR FOOTPATH CROSSING AND OTHER ASSOCIATED WORK	RE PROPOSED UTILITIES AND SETANCES CAROSING EVERTING FORDE SHULL BE PROVIDED FOR USING A TREMCHLESS TEALOULSE SOLARD TO DAMAGE THE EXERTING SUFFICIE ALL SETANCE CONDUTIS UNDER ROADS MUST BE LAD OF OA MANALANDEPTH OF TO DAM	ROLL KERB AND GUTTER	RK	EXIST RK FUT	FUT RK
F) PRIOR TO IMOMPILIANS PUBLIC UTILITY CROSSINGS IN ROAD RESERVES	R7 CONCRETE FOOTPATH CONSTRUCTION IS TO BE BOARDED WITH COUNCIL PENDING COMPLETION OF UTILITY/SERVICES AND STREPARTMENT MART INCC.	KERB ONLY	KO EXIS	EXIST KO FUT	FUT KO
	R8 ALL TENPORARY READS MUST BE TENPORARUY SEALED WITH A SINCLE CART RULSH SEAL	EDGE STRIP	ES	EXIST ES FUT	FUT ES
	R9 ALL PERMANENT ROUGS MUST DE SEMLED WITH A SINGLE COAT FULSH GEAL AND 50 MANCH AS TOBE APPTED IN MUST STATIENT ALMANE THE FULL ALMADER TO DE AS OF DATA DATA DATA DATA DATA DATA DATA DAT	MOUNTABLE KEPB	MK EXIS	EXIST MK FUT MK	MK
G4 WARE SMACH JUNCTIONS WITH EXISTING WORKS 55 NO WORK IS TO BE CADDIED OUT TAN COLMMENT INDIRECTLY OR AN OUNTRY INCOMPATING WITH DATA TANK THE MANAGEMENT	RID SIGHPOSITING AND LIVE MARKING SHALL CONFORM TO ASIY 22 TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES FOR GENERAL.	DISH CROSSING	DC	EXIST DC FUT DC	8
FEMASION FROM THE OWNERS AND ALL UTLIFESSENDES ARE TO BE MANYTARED AT ALL TIMES TO ADJAWING SS VEHICLER AND ALL TIMES TO ADJAWING	Ver anseur in includes the Intervention Manetasia of Coore-Galino ASIGOS EFEOAFEETEETINE MATERIAL SA NO EBANGES FOR ANO THARPPC CONTROL MAPPOSES ALL ANOS AND INCENTIONE ISLANDS OF POLADODESIA MALL AT LOFTER SIAMSI DIS DEEDEMORTING MATERIAL MATURES INSTALLATION SHALL DOCARI IN ACCORDANCE MATH HIE PLA MA PROPADATIVE FEI CONTRUMATIVES	VEHICULAR CROSSING	EXIS	EXIST VC FUT VC	, vc
PHOPENTES AFFECTED BY CONSTITUCTION G* ALL RUBBISH, BUILDINGS, SHEDS AND FENCES TO BE REMOVED TO SATISFACTION OF COUNCIL'S ENGINEER	RII ALLIOTAND HOUSE NAMERIS MASTRE STENCILED ON REBE FACE	PEDESTRIAN RAMP			
C68 COUNCIL ENGINEERS HAVE DISOPETION TO WARY, AS OXINSIDERED INECESSMAY. THE ENGINEERING REALIMETENTS IN PRESENCE OF A PARTICULAR SLEDVISION OR DEVELOMENT HAVING REGARD TO THE SITE DEDURTED.	RIZ STREETSIGNETTO COUNCIL STANDARD MUSTBEINSTALLED BY TH€ CONTRACTOR	EDGE OF BITUMEN	EOB EXISI	EXIST EOB FUT B	FUT EOB
EARTHWORKS	ATTAWARTER STORE	ROAD PAVENENT			
EI EARTWORKS ARE TO BE CARRIED OUT TO THE SATISFACTION OF THE COUNCIL UNSTITABLE MATERIALS ARE TO BE BENAVIED FERMINANDE AND LY NO RIMON TO AN UNIVERSITY OF THE COUNCIL UNSTITUTES IN A THEORY OF THE	ALL APPES TO BE SPICET AND SOCKET RUBBER RING JOINTED	BENCHMARK	A BM 115 RL 165 02	115 65.02	
	32 ALL DWGPT/DIMAL PPERIMESIN ROADS MIST RELOCATED VUNCEN KERR AND GE DROKPLLED WITH APPROVED GRANULAR INFERTAL UNLESS OTHERMISE APPLOVED BY THE COLMACL RANGERER	BATTERS	11-1-		
COMPATION OF BEFINANCES SHELL COMPARED FOR LINI, EAPY RESENTS AND COEFFICIENT SALUE CARE TO BE THUR AND THE REF REDORMENT REGRADES SHALL COMPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH TEST MITCODE ACCORDENCE 31 OF 35 CESS 11 THE CONTROLLEGTENCE FOR THINKOWS SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE GLOBELUES TORAGE STORE ACCORDENCE ON CAREFULATION AND FEREDENTIAL DEPENDENT TO COMPARED ACCORDENCE ON CAREFULATION AND FEREDENTIAL DEPENDENT TO COMPARE ACCORDENT ACCORDENT AND FEREDENTIAL DEPENDENT TO COMPARE ACCORDENT ACCORDENT ACCORDENT AND FEREDENTIAL DEPENDENT TO COMPARE ACCORDENT ACCORDENT ACCORDENT AND FEREDENTIAL DEPENDENT ACCORDENT ACCORDENT ACCORDENT ACCORDENT AND FEREDENTIAL DEPENDENT ACCORDENT ACCORDENT ACCORDENT ACCORDENT ACCORDENT AND FEREDENTIAL DEPENDENT ACCORDEN	S3 DRAMMORE DNES MUST BE BADOFFLIED WITH APPROVED GHANULAR INTERFLUE IN TAFFLORE A REAS THREE S1 MERISSIO SEADLORAINAGE WRAPPED IN GEOTEXTLE STOONING MUST BE PROVIDED TO ALL DOWNE REMARMINS.	CONCRETE PATHWAY	145X		Ξ.
WHERE IT IS PROPOSED TO USE TEST METHOD AS 12895 8 I TO DE TERMINE. THE FIELD DENSITY, A SAND REPLACEMENT METHOD SHALL BE USED TO COMPRIM THE RESULTS	A ALL GULLY PTTS TO COMPALES STANDARD AND UNTERS GENTRALLY PLACED AT SAGPITS	CONTOURS	the second second		
ID THE SUITINE OWNIFIED GEOTEONICAL ENDIERD SHALL HARE ALENEL HREPONSBULTY FOR ALL FILLING AS DEPIRED IN PREMIXE A SYSTEM CHINES ON EXATTHMORIES FOR COMPERCIAL AND RESIDENTIAL DOMESTICAL AND DEPIDENT OF COMPENSATION OF A DATE OF A DATE OF A DATE OF A DATE OF A DATE OF A DATE OF A DATE OF A DATE OF A DA	Stall FILS MUST RE ERROWED, AND STREAMURED PROVIDE SUZT REINFORCEMENT AND GAUXWISED STEP ROMS IN ALL PITS OVER 1.24/ETIRES DEEF AS ME AS INSEED FROM THE TIP OF GAUET TO FIE INVESTOR FILE PITS	SITE REGRADING AREA	Lan Part		
	SS CONDETEI IS TO HAVE MMIAUNCOMPRESSIVE STREMGTH OF ZAMPA AT 23 AAY'S UNLESS OTHERMISE APPROVED BY THE COUNCIL PAGNEER	SERVICE LINES SEWER, GAS, WATER ELECTRICITY			
C4 Investor of the nucleo house of the Sub-Sub-Sub-Sub-Sub-Sub-Sub-Sub-Sub-Sub-	S7 ALL INTERALL OT NEWT DRAINAGE MAST HANNAM MAPPE DAMAETER OF ISOMMAND A NANAMAND A NANAMAND GRADE OF 1% UNLESS OTHERWISE APPROVED BY THE COUNCIL ENGINEER	COMMUNICATION LINES TELSTRA, FIBRE OPTIC	 	6	×.
	3. ALL INTERALLOTINENT DRAINAGE LINES MUST BE LAID CENTRALLY WITHIN DRAINAGE EXSEMENTS INSPECTION PTS MASS BEE PROVIDED AT ALL CHANGES OF GRADE BAID DREED TOW	OVER HEAD LINES AND POLES	<mark>> ♦</mark> × × > 0	ĸ	1
E6 PROVIDE MINIANINED MANANA MAYAN DURSON, MINI HOW FOOTWATHS FILLED REBEA AND ALL VERE RESEAS ISSUED SUPPORT OF AN INFORMATION TO RELED AREAS TO BE STRAUGED WITH APPROVED VECETATIONA MANANANCE 14 DAYS AFTER TO FOOLING AND ARE TO BE WAITER D' D'O BISARE ERAMANINO.	S INTERALIONARY DRAINAGE LINES MUST RE INSTALLED AFTER SYDNEY WATER SEVERANCE LINES HAVE BEEN INSTALLED WHERE SEVERT IS PROPOSED ADJACENT TO INTERALL DIARANCEE LINES	SERVICE PITS TELECOMPIT, ACCESS CHAMBER, HYDRANT, STOP VALVE, AIR VALVE	•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••		
E7 THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CONTROL SEDIMENTATION ENDSIGN AND POLLUTION DURING CONSTRUCTION IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE CURRENT EDITION OF NAMAGING URBAN STORMINATER SOLLS	1% AEP OVERLAND FLOW PATHS MUST BE	UMMT OF ROAD CONSTRUCTION	mann		
AND CORSTHUCTION PHODUCED BY LANDCOM E8 AMINIAM INFERE WIDE CONTINUOUS STRIP OF COUCH GRASS SHALL BF PLACED BEHIND THE PACK OF ALL	SI I ALL PLAVE BONHCKSION WOW WAR ARE TO CLEARLY DELINEATE THE EXTENT/LOGATION OF FLOOD UNES Including the 5% JAPP, MARP AND PMF	LIMIT OF STAGE	1		
KETUBS AND OTHER COMPARETS STRUCTURES IMEDIATELY AFTER THE COMPETENCING THE FOOTPATH GALONICS ON OTHER ELEMENTS A PATHOLISE AND SHALL BE MANITANED AND RETACED AS REQUIRED DIANG THE CONSTRUCTIONANTEMAGE FEBLIOD.	S12 ADEQUATE PROVISION IS TO BE IMPGE TO PREJENT SCOURING AND SEDIMENTATION FOR ALL DRAIMAGE WORKS IN ACCORDANCE WITH ODWICEL SFEQUREMENTS	FENCE POST AND RAIL FENCE SECURITY FENCE			
CALIBRE CONSULTING GENERAL	S13 PITUNIELS ARE FOR ESTERVILLED WITH APPLICABLE DISTINCTION STERVILL MAIL/ABLE FROM COUNCIL S14 ATT PTABLAR MARTER ADAR STERVILLED AND ADAR ADAR ADAR ADAR ADAR ADAR ADAR	LOT NUMBERS	D-7 01/10		
Col: Sumure sounded Finom SUMPERIOR outliefe CONSULTING An And Cole Strate CONSULTING		TREES TO RETAIN WITHIN SITE TREES TO REMOVED WITHIN SITE	G	63	
	ALL TIMES DURING THE CONSTRUCTION AND WANTERWAVE PERIODS	HE TAINING WALL	Contraction of the second second second		
		ROCK WALL			
0.03 IMPES UP 107500 SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED WITH SINGOT AND SOCKET RUBER RING JOINTS AND BE OF FIBRE REINFORCED CONCRETEE WINED HALL CONFORMRESPECTINELY TO THE FREQUERIENTS OF AS 103 AND AS 403 WHERE FIBRE REINFORCED CONCRETE FIPRES ARE TO BE URED. A PROPRIETARY COLURATS TO BE APPLED OVER THE PIPPE JOINTS]
COM IN PRESIGNATER THAN 7500 ARE TO BE CONSTRUCTED FROM SULPATE A ESISTANT CEMENT		FOR RO	FOR ROAD ACT APPROVAL	PPRO	VAL
	AL DRE-REALTS & SCHEREICON WITH RE CARTINATION IN PROJECTION OF A DREAM ON TOWN TO A DREAM ON TOWN TOWN TOWN TOWN TOWN TOWN TOWN T	S	GENERAL NOTES & LEGEND	S & LEGEND	
Registry to constrain access on a constraint	CSR HORSLEY PARK - OLD WALLGROVE ROAD WIDENING	Callore	Properties and and and	alpen weeks in	- <i>*</i> .
weiw Owen Avent			- 91-01-011/mpg		8

Page 82 of 102 Pages



page 83 of 102 Pages



page 84 of 102 Pages



Page 85 of 102 Pages



86 of 102 Pages Page



Page 87 of 102 Pages



Page 88 of 102 Pages



Page 89 of 102 Pages



Page 90 of 102 Pages



Page 91 of 102 Pages



Page 92 of 102 Pages



Page 93 of 102 Pages



Page 94 of 102 Pages



Page 95 of 102 Pages



Page 96 of 102 Pages



Page 97 of 102 Pages

DRAINS - HYDROLOGYHYDRAULIC CALCULATION SHEET

PIT / NOCE DETAILS								LIN-CATCHNEYTOFTALLS							
Name	Max HGL	Max Pond I HGL F	Max HGL Max Pond Max Surface Mas Pond HGL Flow Arthving votume fourm(s) recent	Mar Poet	Min Freeboard (m)	Ownflow (ox m/s)	Constraint	Nume	RowQ	Paved Max C	Grassed Max Q	(H 12	finished Tr	Sept. 2	Due to Storm
5W ACCESS RD 02/1	23.09		0.023		1.1	•	Now	C SW ACCESS RD CD/T	0.011	000	0.001		14	in a	Contraction of the
SWACCESS PD 01/1	32.00		0		3.5		Nove	C SW ACCESS 8D CLM	0000	0000		-			CONT. SVEY MOR
SWACCEE #0.01/4	21.17		0		2.51		Nove	C SWACCESS AD OUT	0.012	0.011	000	-	-		All fit for in 70 minutes stress manual 71 minute being the
SW ACCESS RD 01/5	11.40		0		2.01		Nove	C STGRIDT	5.221	5231		-	4		The second se
SWACCESS PD 02/5	714		0.000		101	0	West Conscine	Ĩ	376.0	0,266	0.015		5		AREA CONTRACTOR AND ADDRESS AND ADDRESS AND ADDRESS ADDRES
SW ACCESS RO OV1	22.25		0.052		12	0	North							2	and a start of the second transfer of the second the second of the secon
N.01/1	22.67		5.221												
SW ACCISS PD 01/1	12.65		0		四7		Noco								
SW ACC555 #0.01/2	12.22		0		145		Nore								
NOUT	32.38		6276												

Name	Nav D townyd	Vac V	Max U/S HCLIM	Max O/5 HGL (m)	Due to Storie
1/TO OX \$5232# MS 4	0.023	<u>ج</u> :	12312	21812	ABAR Syess, Monutes storn, arreade 71,3 mm/h. Zone
P SW ACCESS RD-01/1	5510	1	21.933	21.875	ARAN Synx, 20 minutes vicini, annues 71 3 mm/h. Zona
P DW ACCESS ND OL/4	「「「「「「「」」」	234	27.72	31.025	Aligh Synam, Numbers storm, presses 71.3 merily fore
P 5W ACCESS RD 0UTS	5402	13.9	71.513	21,990	ARR Speet, Minister storm center 71 1mm/h. Tone
\$ DW ACCESS ND OL/S	5253	180	11.223	11074	Crements stores average 71.3 mech.
P 3W ACCESS ND 01/1	0.002	12	72.2%1	50	Allah Suem, Numera storm, second 21 Janesh Zoon
1/10 %4	Ster	22	12,467	72.647	ARAS Spein, 20 mental storm bernare 71, 7 ments 7 core
# EW ACCESS NO OLD	SXX	15	72,647	100.02	LIDON AVAILE 71.3 MM/h
P EW ACCESS ND OUT?	1954	354	121.17	32.0M	Allif Sverk, Navestry ucon, burease 71, 3 me/h. Zees
PK 0102	0,01	0.21	22.134	12.21	ARAN Super, IC mouths show porcee 10.1 me.fb. 7cm

	DVENTIOW BOKITE DETAILS							
	Name	NUC ANY	NAM D D/S	Saleo	Max D	Vic No.	Wex By V Max Width	Max V
	FSWADDUS ND 02/1	0	0	0.023	0	0	0	0
. 70ne 1	F SWACCESS ND CI/IE	0	0	020	•	•	.0	0
Core 1	FSWACKSSACONS	0	0	005	0	0	0	•
Lione L								
Lidne 1								
Corre 1								
The set of								

DRAINS - HYDROLOGY/HYDRAULIC CALCULATION SHEET 20 YEAR ARI MINOR STORM EVENT

FILMOC DCM/14								A NOT A LONG TO THE REAL OF A LONG TO							
Name	Max HGL	Max HGL Nax Pand HGL	Mar Sartace Flow America	Max Fond Volume	Treckourd	Overflow fourmul	Constraint	Name	Max Flow C	Paved Mox Q	Grassed Max Q	Paved	Grassed	Supp	Due to Storm
and the second se			{cu.m/s}	for mi	imi				(cu.m/s)	fourm/s	fearm/at	(mm)	Immed	(Lowed)	
WARCESS ND 02/1	1914		0.03		N.	0	Niche	C BW ACCESS RD 02/1	000	8000	000		10	0	All for a Manual Contract States and a set of a set of the
E/10 OIL SS300W MS	22.53		0		2,87		None	C3W ACC35 ND 01/5	0.012	0.011	0.001	-	30	0	ARKR 7D vest 3D monthes show success 97 4mm (h. 2004 1
SWACCES ND 01/4	72.35		Ŷ		107		None	C SW ACCESS RD 03/1	0.069	0.066	0.005		01	0	ADD North Minister come and an of American
SW ACCESS RD D1/5	72.1		0		971		None	C STG3 LOT	6.766	6.766	c	ľ	40		ARRR 20 wear 20 minutes closes warnes 02 dama (h. 7000 d
SW ACCTSS ND D1/II	21.12		0.012		1.20	0.001	Indiat Concerns	CAGINOAD	0.84	0.48	000	-	to.		THE PART OF THE PA
1/1/0 Oil 253/274 MS	72.46		690 0		14	0	1								A INVITA
1/10 N	72.01		6,766				Γ								
SW ACCESS RD 01/1	12.50		0		411		Nore								
SW ACCESS RD 01/2	22.65		•		3.34		None								
N OILT	22.54		0302				Γ								

Marce March March <th< th=""><th>SUATO Dele</th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th></th<>	SUATO Dele					
PMACKISROPI 0.00 1.53 7.314 7.314 3.43.3.27 2.44.3.27 2.44.3.7 2.44.4.1<	Name	form/u)	Max V (m/h)	Num US	Maa DVS HIGE (m)	Chier to Storem
PMACCINFOLOD 644 235 2314 243.0 <	P SW ACCESS RD (C)1	00	11	31 H J F	11.53	AREN 23 year. 20 minutes storm, overside 92.4 mm/P. Zone 1
PSWACCIS/REDRIG 44 23 23 23 24 24 23 23 24 23 24 23 23 24 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 24 <th24< th=""> 24 24</th24<>	P.SWACCES RD 02/3	6.005	238	72,423	2130	AUGA 20 year, 20 minutes statin, average 32.4 mm/h. Zone 2
EvenceStronging 6-45 3-31 1-30 1-34 Add Stream Add Stream <t< td=""><td># SW ACCESS RD OL/4</td><td>646</td><td>2.75</td><td>22.232</td><td>22,100</td><td>AMAN 20 rear, 20 meters scene, oversee 32.4 mm/h. Zone 2</td></t<>	# SW ACCESS RD OL/4	646	2.75	22.232	22,100	AMAN 20 rear, 20 meters scene, oversee 32.4 mm/h. Zone 2
FUNCTORS/ROUTIN 6:1 2:3 2:2:0 3:4:3.7 microsciencies 3:4:4:3.7 microsciencies 3:4:4.7 microscie	P SW ACCESS RD 01/5	640	121	12.021	71.2156	Ak5A Zi year, Minerates more average 92.4 millill. Zone 1
Paracestisting columna Link Table Link Li	# SW ACCESS RD 01/6	6.5	22	21,340	71,755	Alla Dirra, Minnut storn, average 914 mm/h, Zone 1
Mettal 243 2444 <t< td=""><td># 5W ACCESS RD 03/1</td><td>0.079</td><td>115</td><td>12.25</td><td>105.22</td><td>ALLS Dyes, Number north person 214 mmlb, how 1</td></t<>	# 5W ACCESS RD 03/1	0.079	115	12.25	105.22	ALLS Dyes, Number north person 214 mmlb, how 1
PLANCERSPORT 5 VAN TO THE TAX DEFECTION TO THE TAX	IN CITI	123	122	72/812	22.793	AAGN 20 year, 20 minutes intern, average 92.4 min/h, 20ne 2
P 3W 445555510 EV. 2 6 50 2 15 2 73.22 77.56 A454.20 real. 20 molto Jane 1 M 9002 0 451 0 151 73.51 74.52 A445.20 real. 20 molto Jane 1 RAINS - HYDROLOGY/HYDRAULIC CALCULATION SHEET	P SW ACCESS RD 01/1	144	3.06	22.735	120.01	AMAR 20 year, 20 member storn, oversee 92.4 mm/h, 20ne 1
No. 1019 0 495 1 515 1 71527 AMB 2019 2 510 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	P.SW ACCESS RD CUT?	5005	136	72.623	252	AREA 20 year, 20 mynutes intern, average 92.4 mm/h. Zone 1
RAINS - HYDROLOGY/HYDRAULIC CALCULATION SHEET	Pri (100	0.039	0.19	22.635	128.577	ANGR JOyear, Idencutes libre, average 127 mm/h, Ince 1
	RAINS - HYDRO	DLOGY	/HYDR/	AULIC C/	ALCULZ	VTION SHEET

Nate	Also QUD	Man a Colt	Sale D	Mar D	Man Day	Man Withh	Was V	One to Staten
T SW ACCESS RD 02/1	0	0	0.025	0	•	0	0	
F SIV ACCESS RO 01/H	1000	0.001	0.333	0.024	100	10.24	4.1%	ARGN 20 year, 20 minuter Contr. mersine 21 & nmulh. 2min
F SW ACCESS AD 03/1	0	0	0.035	9	0	0	0	

~	0.639	0.19	22.635	12.627	ANGR JOYNEY, 1	designets	ROTA, 2	veriage 1
AVDROLOG	1/250	4YDRA	WHYDRALLIC CALCUL AT	ALC IN	ATION SHEFT	Ŀ		
		2	0000	200		į		

PIPE DETAILS	100000		1000			SJE CATCHNENT DETAUS					Î		
Nare	Mar Q.	Van V En Vu	-	May U/S May D/S WGLENE 2401 (ML	Due to Storm	Name	Max Flow O	Paved	Grastet	Paved	Grassed	Supp	Dae to Storm
P 30V ACCESS RD 62/1	0.035	142	73.845	21242	Allan 100 year, 20minutes scores, and age 170 mev/h, 20ne 1	CONTRACTOR - CONTRACTOR	(cu.m/s)	-	[Shares]	(unu)	(min)	u u	
1/10 QE \$52277 7/5 4	1.522	2.00	73.61	23.453	AREA 100 year, 30 minutes strem, secrete 120 mm/h, 2014 1	C SW ACCESS ED 02/1	0.036	MOD	000		10	0	- ANB 4 100 years, 20 minutes storm, average 120 mm/n. 2004 1
P SW ACCESS 4D GUM #14	122	2.00	73.246	72.975	A38.4 100 years, 20 millior statem, average 120 mm/31, 20ne 1	C SW ACCES RD 01/1	0.014	0.00	100.0	~	9	0	AREN DO year, Dimension Vorm, avriage 120 mm/h, 2004 1
P 3W ACCESS ND 01/5	E 2445	161	72.775	17,463	ABLA 100 year, Jonnoutra storm, and an 170 millih, dans 1	C SW ACCTSS RD 60/1	0.094	0.08	0000	5	10	41	AR&R 100 year 20 minures storm, average 120 mm/h. Zone 1
P.SW ACCESS RD 00.54	E 615.	2.90	21,539	71.454	ARKA 100 year, 30 minutes starm, sectade 130 minuts, 20ne 1	CSTGLIOT	8173	A.173	0	-	2	0	AREA KOVEN, 20 NUMBER VOTE, SHEDGE 120 MM/N, Zone 1
F DW ACCESS ND OILL	0.063	武の	22.98	20072	ARAR 500 year, 20 minutes storm, average 120 mm/h, 20ne 1	CSICIEDAD	0,443	0.621	0.035	- S	10	0	ARAB DO year, TOminian Uorni, average 120 mm/h, 2006 1
1710144	1111	2.75	2.2	34,254	ARXA \$20 year, 20 minutes storm, average \$20 mm/b, 2014 \$								
PAW ACCESS NO OUT	400.0	2.73	74.234	34,05	AREA 100 year, Nominates stams, average 120 mm/h, 20ne 1								
P SW ACCESS RD OL/2	8.446	2.87	24,059	73.815	All.D. 100 year, X. minutes starm, nervage 120 mm/h, 20re 1								
0050 M4	DeN	017	14030	31.06		PULLER OW BOUTE PERMIT							
						Nome Ma	Marcoughts Other Set O	TWN SAL	o Ma	O Mar D	Mix O Mar DeV Mix With	ath May	Car to Storm
						F SWAGEZSS &D 02/1	0	0	0	0	0	0	- Internet and a second s
						FSWACCESS AD 02/6 0	0.002 0.0	0.001 0	100	100 0	10.0	0.34	ARSA 200 year. Nominates storm avoide 220 mm/h. Zone 1
						F 5W ACCESS ND 02/1	4	9	0	-	-	0	

athya 5	ROAD & DRAINAGE DESIGN	DATE	Reveal from the company to the company of the compa
CalOre	CSR HORSLEY PARK - OLD WALLGROVE ROAD WIDENING	Introducts on the second control works	AN AN BL CK DEMONS DURING FOR TANGED
		MOT FORM CONSTRUCTION LINE OF CONSTRUCTION CONSTRUCTION CONSTRUCTION	" A C IN S - OC STREAM CONTRACTOR SOLD YOU THE STREAM OF
		DO NOT SSALE Manager Utban Derelopmen	2 2 0 AM AM CAL READED FOR FOULD FOR HEAD ACT APPROVAL
DIVINAGE CALCULATIONS	Cor Cor	PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION USE MRITTEN DIMENSIONS ONLY FIEAUSI CPERS	
DDAINAGE CALCILI ATIONS		ALCONTROLOGIC DE OPERATORIE DE OPERATORIE DE OPERATORIE DE SUCART GREEN	
Dates the	Qe.		
FOR ROAD ACT APPROVAL			

Page 98 of 102 Pages



Page 99 of 102 Pages





Page 101 of 102 pages



Page 102 of 102 Pages